SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
August 10, 2017
5:00 p.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, August 10, 2017,
in the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20" Street Mall — Third Floor, 344 — 20™ Street, Oakland,

California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/ CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART _
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of
the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov: in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary




Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire

in connection with;

1. CALL TO ORDER

A.
B.
C.

Roll Call.

Pledge of Allegiance. .

Introduction of Special Guests.

i. Janice Armigo Brown. (Director Raburn’s request.)

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A.

Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of July 27, 2017.* Board requested
to authorize.

Fixed Property Tax Rates Fiscal Year 2017-2018 General Obligation
Bonds.* Board requested to authorize.

Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9033, M03 Material for Interlocking
Track.* Board requested to authorize.

Award Procurement of Gauntlet Track Materials to Voestalpine Nortrak
Inc.* Board requested to authorize.

Reject the Single Bid for Contract No. 09AF-111, TBT Cross Passage
Doors.* Board requested to reject.

Reject All Bids for Contract No. 15TH-120, Water Intrusion Repair at
Train Control Rooms.* Board requested to reject.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT - 15 Minutes

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end of the Meeting.)

4. FINANCE., BOND OVERSIGHT AND ADMINISTRATION ITEMS

Director Josefowitz, Chairperson
NO ITEMS.

5. OPERATIONS. SAFETY AND WORKFORCE' ITEMS
Director Keller, Chairperson

A.

B.

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 2017.* Board requested to authorize.

BART Citizen Oversight Model Evaluation Report.* For discussion.

* Attachment available . 20f3



10.

* Attachment available

PLANNING AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Raburn, Chairperson

A. Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Concord for the
Inclusion of the North Concord/Martinez BART Station Property within
the Concord Specific Plan to Enable Future Transit Oriented
Development.* Board requested to authorize.

B. Proposed BART Extension to Livermore Update.* For information.

C. Metropolitan Transportation Commission Proposed Regional Measure 3
Update.* For information. (President Saltzman’s request.)

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,.
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR’S REPORT

A. Quarterly Report of the Office of the Independent Police Auditor. For
information.

BOARD MATTERS

A. Removal and Appointment of BART Police Citizen Review Board
Members.* (Director Allen’s and Director Simon’s requests.)

B. Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

C. Roll Call for Introductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

D. In Memoriam,
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

PUBLIC COMMENT
{(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

30of3



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,793rd Meéting
July 27,2017

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held July 27, 2017, convening at 9:01 a.m. in
the Board Room, 344 20" Street, Oakland, California. President Saltzman presided; Kenneth A.
Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn,
Simon, and Saltzman.

Absent:  None.
President Saltzman brought Board Matters before the Board.
General Manager Grace Crunican introduced and welcomed the 2017 American Public
Transportation Association International Rail Rodeo Champions: BART Maintenance Team
(Michael Gross, James Moon, Gary Crandell) and Train Operator Team (Tenikia Jackson, John
O’Connor Jr.), and described the teams’ accomplishments at the Rodeo. Ms. Paula Fraser,
Assistant Chief Transportation Officer, M-Line, and Mr. Scott Fitzgerald, Assistant Shop
Superintendent, Richmond, addressed the Board.

Director Blalock introduced and welcomed the 2017 Mineta Transportation Institute Graduates:
Elizabeth Aigbekaen, Rachel Lockett, Shrenik Shah, Marielle Cuison, Kimberly Mahoney, and
Rowena Ona.

President Saltzman announced that the order of agenda items would be changed.

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of June 22, 2017, and July 13, 2017.

2. Relocation for the Position of Human Resources Division Manager,
Absence Management Programs.

3. Federal Highway Administration Title VI Policy.

4, Award of Contract No. 11KH-110A, 24" and Mission Street Station
Crossover Facilities Improvements.

5. Award of Contract No. 110G-121, Balboa Park Station Wayfinding
Improvements.

6. Rejecf the Single Bid for Invitation for Bid No. 9014, Aerial Lift Trucks.

-1-



Director McPartland made the following motions as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the
motions, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Saltzman. Noes - 0.

L.

That the Minutes of the Meetings of June 22, and July 13, 2017, be

approved.

That the General Manager or her designee be authorized, in conformance
with established District procedures, to enter into a relocation agreement,
in an amount not to exceed $18,000.00, for the Human Resources Division
Manager, Absence Management Programs, in accordance with
Management Procedure Number 70, “New Employee Relocation Expense
Reimbursement.”

That the Federal Highway Administration Title VI Policy be adopted.

‘That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract

No. 11KH-110A, Construction of BART’s 24™ and Mission Station
Crossover Facility Improvements, to Barrera’s Builders, for the Bid Price
of $547,700.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General
Manager, and subject to the District’s protest procedures and Federal
Transit Administration’s requirements related to protest procedures.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract

No. 110G-121, Balboa Park Station Wayfinding Improvements Project, to
LC General Engineering & Construction, Inc., for the Bid price of
$1,334,449.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General
Manager, and subject to the District’s protest procedures.

That the Bid for Invitation for Bid No. 9014, for the procurement of two
(2) aerial lift trucks, be rejected, and that the General Manager be
authorized to re-advertise the solicitation.

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning and Legislation Committee, brought the matter of
West Oakland Transit Oriented Development Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) before
the Board. Mr. Val Menotti, Acting Assistant General Manager, Planning, Development, and
Construction; Mr. Paul Voix, Principal Property Development Officer; and Ms. Hannah
Lindelof, Principal Planner, presented the item.

The following individuals addressed the Board.

Carole Ward Allen

Alan Dones
Jun Ji

Bruce Beasley
Jabari Herbert
Vernite Naylor

Julia Ma Powers

Ray Kidd



Robyn Hodges
Darrell Ford
Rita Look
Regina Davis

Director Simon moved that the General Manager or her designee be authorized to enter into an
amendment to the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with China Harbour Engineering Company,
Ltd., for development at the West Oakland BART Station extending the ENA’s term through
June 30, 2018, and if necessary, enter into a subsequent amendment to the ENA extending its
term through June 30, 2019. Director Dufty seconded the motion. The item was discussed.

Director McPartland made a substitute motion, that the General Manager or her designee be
authorized to enter into an amendment to the ENA with China Harbour Engineering Company,
Ltd., for development at the West Oakland BART Station extending the ENA’s term through
June 30, 2019. Director Raburn seconded the substitute motion. Discussion continued.

Director Josefowitz requested an amendment to the substitute motion to include a requirement
that milestones be met by June 30, 2018, before extending the ENA to June 30, 2019.
Discussion continued. Directors McPartland and Raburn withdrew the substitute motion. The
original motion carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock,
Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Saltzman. Noes - 0.

Director Raburn brought the matter of Dublin/Pleasanton and West Dublin/Pleasanton Stations
Parking Strategy, Advance Environmental Activities, and Planning for Multimodal Access
Projects before the Board. Mr. Menotti and Ms. Rachel Factor, Senior Planner, presented the
item.

The following individuals addressed the Board.
Tim Sbranti

Cindy Chin

Marianne Payne

Andrew Slivka

Robert Allen

Douglas Boxer

Dave Campbell

Kristi Marleau

The item was discussed. Director McPartland moved that the Board adopt the Phase 2 garage
expansion.

Director Allen seconded the motion.

President Saltzman made a substitute motion: that the Board direct staff 1) to advance BART’s
Hybrid Parking Strategy for Dublin/Pleasanton and West Dublin/Pleasanton stations; 2) to
complete planning and environmental work to deliver the hybrid parking strategy at the
Dublin/Pleasanton and West Dublin/Pleasanton stations; 3) to work with funding partners and
prepare a funding plan; 4) to return to the Board within six months to seek approval of the hybrid
parking strategy, the environmental review document and funding plan; 5) to advance planning

3-



for multimodal access projects at the Dublin/Pleasanton station; 6) continue outreach for shared
~ parking opportunities; and 7) provide an update in six months on the progress of access
improvements. Director Dufty seconded the substitute motion. Discussion continued. The
substitute motion carried by electronic vote. Ayes —5: Directors Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller,
Raburn, and Saltzman. Noes —4: Directors Allen, Blalock, McPartland, and Simon.

Director Keller, Chairperson of the Operations, Safety, and Workforce Committee, brought the
matter of Agreements for General Engineering Services for BART Projects before the Board.
Mr. Robert Mitroff, Acting Assistant General Manager, Planning, Development, and
Construction, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Raburn moved that the
General Manager be authorized to award the following Agreements to provide General
Engineering Services for BART Projects, in an amount not to exceed $25,000,000.00 each,
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the District’s protest
procedures and Federal Transit Administration’s requirements related to protests: Agreement
No. 6M8119, with AECOM Technical Services, Inc./Transit Systems Engineering, Inc., Joint

~ Venture; Agreement No. 6M8120, with HNTB Corporation/FMG Architects, Joint Venture;
Agreement No. 6M8121, with Parsons Transportation Group, Inc.; Agreement No. 6M8122,
with PGH Wong Engineering, Inc.; Agreement No. 6M8123, with STV Inc.; and Agreement
No. 6M8124, with WSP USA Inc. Director Dufty seconded the motion. Discussion continued.

Sylvia Kwan addressed the Board.

The motion carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Saltzman. Noes — 0.

Director Keller brought the following Operations, Safety, and Workforce items before the Board
as a unit. '

1. Award of Contract No. 01RQ-190, Construction of Hayward Maintenance
Complex Project Turntable Relocation.

2. Award of Contract No. 15PJ-130B, BART Earthquake Safety Program
Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station.

3. Change Order to Contract No. 01RQ-120, Hayward Maintenance Complex
Project Site, Track and Systems, with Proven Management, Inc. for Time
Impact Costs (C.O. No. 92).

4. Change Order to Contract No. 09AU-120, BART Earthquake Safety Program
TBT Internal Retrofit, with Shimmick/CEC Joint Venture, for Through-Bolt
Connections (C.O. No. 13.1 Part 1).

5. Change Order to Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson
Construction Co. Inc., for Time Impact Costs and Extension of Time (C.O.
No. 90). °



Director Raburn made the following motions as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Saltzman. Noes - 0.

1.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 01RQ-190,
Construction of the Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Turntable
Relocation, to Shimmick Construction Company, Inc., for the total Bid price
of $4,138,000.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General
Manager, subject to the District’s protest procedures and Federal Transit
Administration’s requirements related to protest procedures.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15PJ-130B,
Earthquake Safety Program Fruitvale Station and Coliseum Station, to
Brosamer and Wall, Inc., for the Bid amount of $14,115,500.00, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to the District’s
protest procedures and Federal Highway Administration’s requirements
related to protests.

That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 92,
Time Impacts from Change Order No. 24 and No. 49, and non-work weather
days, in an amount not to exceed $1,331,000.00, and extend the Contract
completion date 147 calendar days, for Contract No. 01RQ-120, Hayward
Maintenance Complex Project Site, Track and Systems, with Proven
Management, Inc.

That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 13.1
Part 1, Through-Bolt Connection — J Hangers, in an amount not to exceed
$1,500,000.00, to Contract No. 09AU-120, BART Earthquake Safety Program
TBT Internal Retrofit, with Shimmick/CEC Joint Venture.

That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 90,
Time Impacts from Change Order No. 41 and No. 67, in an amount not to
exceed $1,143,056.00, and extend the Contract completion date by 273
calendar days for Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson
Construction Company, Inc.

President Saltzman announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 11-A
(Conference with Legal Counsel) and 11-B (Conference with Labor Negotiators) of the regular
Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session upon conclusion of the

closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:50 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 1:03 p.m.



Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Simon,
and Saltzman.

Absent:  None. Director Raburn entered the Meeting later.
Director Raburn entered the Meeting.l
President Saltzman exited the Meeting.
Director Simon exited the Meeting.

The Board Meeting recessed at 2:28 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 2:29 p.m.
Directors present: Directors Blalock, Dufty, J osefowitz, McPartland, and Raburn.

Absent: Directors Simon and Saltzman. Dlrectors Allen and Keller entered the
Meeting later.

Vice President Raburn announced that the Board had concluded its closed sess1on and that there
were no announcements to be made.

Vice President Raburn brought the matter of Policy for California Low Carbon Fuel Standard
Program Funds before the Board. Ms. Holly Gordon, Sustainability Group Manager, presented
the item.

Director Allen entered the Meeting.

The item was discussed. Director Blalock moved adoption of the Low Carbon Fuel Standard
Policy and adoption of Resolution No. 5347, In the Matter of Amending Resolution No. 5345
regarding the Fiscal Year 2018 Annual Budget. The motion was seconded, and carried by
electronic vote. Ayes —5: Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, McPartland, and Raburn.
Noes — 1: Director Allen. Absent — 3: Directors Keller, Simon, and Saltzman.

Director Allen exited the Meeting.
Director Keller entered the Meeting.

Director Josefowitz brought the matter of Fiscal Year 2017 Short Range Transit Plan/Capital
Improvement Program before the Board. The item was discussed.

Director Blalock exited the Meeting.

Director Dufty moved that the District’s Final Fiscal Year 2017 Short Range Transit Plan/Capital
Improvement Program be adopted and transmitted to the Metropolitan Transportation

-6-



Commission and Federal Transit Administration as required. Director Josefowitz seconded the
motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —5: Directors Dufty, Josefowitz,
Keller, McPartland, and Raburn. Noes — 0. Absent —4: Directors Allen, Blalock, Simon, and
Saltzman.

Vice President Raburn called for the General Manager’s Report.

Ms. Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated in,
ridership, upcoming events, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions items.

Vice President Raburn called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In
Memoriam.

Director Dufty requested that staff report to the Board on establishing a public education
campaign at the downtown San Francisco and 16"/Mission Street Stations outlining several
initiatives to address rider and public concerns about the impact of homelessness on BART.
Director Josefowitz seconded the request.

Director Dufty requested that staff develop recommendations on a transit citizenship educational
campaign. Director Josefowitz seconded the request.

Director Dufty requested the Meeting be adjourned in memory of J. Dietrich Stroeh, President of
the Golden Gate Bridge Transportation District.

Vice President Raburn called for Public Comment. Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

The Meeting was adjourned at 2:51 p.m. in memory of J. Dietrich Stroeh.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 64‘ GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
| ) Z ity Zotty
DATE: 7/11/2017 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes
Originator/Prepared by: Michaela Genjeral Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC
1 ( ]
[ ]

FIXED PROPERTY TAX RATES FY 2017-18 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

PURPOSE:

Fixing the rate of property taxes for BART in San Francisco, Alameda and Contra Costa
Counties for Fiscal Year 2018 as required by Public Utilities Code Section 29126 to pay for
the debt service on the District's General Obligation Bonds.

DISCUSSION:

The net debt service required on the District's General Obligation Bonds for levying the
property tax rate during Fiscal Year 2018 is $51,898,693.49 as determined by BART's
financial staff. The District’s General Obligation Bonds are composed of two separate
measures, Measure AA (Election of 2004) and Measure RR (Election of 2016). The net debt
service required on the District's Measure AA (Election of 2004) General Obligation Bonds
for Fiscal Year 2018 is $39,227,343.80 as determined by BART's financial staff. The net
debt service required on the District's Measure RR (Election of 2016) General Obligation
Bonds for Fiscal Year 2018 is $12,671,349.69 as determined by BART's financial staff.

The net debt service tax rate required by the District for Fiscal Year 2018 is .0084 percent
which equates to $8.40 per one hundred thousand dollars of assessed valuation for the three
counties within the District as determined by their Auditor-Controller's Offices. The net debt
service tax rate required by the District for Fiscal Year 2018 for the Measure AA (Election of
2004) General Obligation Bonds is .0063 percent which equates to $6.30 per one hundred
thousand dollars of assessed valuation for the three counties within the District as
determined by their Auditor-Controller's Offices. The net debt service tax rate required by
the District for Fiscal Year 2018 for the Measure RR (Election of 2016) General Obligation




FIXED PROPERTY TAX RATES FY 2017-18 - GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Bonds is .0021 percent which equates to $2.10 per one hundred thousand dollars of
assessed valuation for the three counties within the District as determined by their Auditor-
Controller's Offices.

Last year's tax rate of $8.00 per one hundred thousand dollars in assessed valuation reflects
the Measure AA (Election of 2004) General Obligation Bonds only. This year’s tax rate
reflects the District’s robust assessed valuation growth and the relatively low cost of capital
for the new Measure RR (Election of 2016) General Obligation Bonds and the Measure AA
(Election of 2004) refunding.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Revenues collected on the basis of the above tax rate will be sufficient for the debt service
requirements for the General Obligation Bonds for Fiscal Year 2018.

ALTERNATIVES:

None.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the tax rate fixed for Fiscal Year 2018 be approved.
MOTION:

Adopt attached Resolution.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In The Matter of Fixing The Rate of Taxes
For San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District for Fiscal Year 2017/18 Resolution No.

WHEREAS, this Board desires to fix the rate of taxes for the District, for the fiscal year July 1, 2017 to
June 30, 2018, and make valid assessments of property and valid levies of taxes in accordance with Public
Utilities Code Section 29126; and

WHEREAS, Section 93(c) of the Revenue and Taxation Code authorizes the District to levy an ad valorem
property tax in order to produce revenues in an amount equal to the amount needed to make annual
payments of principal and interest on the General Obligation Bonds which were approved by over two-
thirds vote of the District’s voters on November 2, 2004 and November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, this Board has determined the tax rate for the District taxes for the counties in the District
for the fiscal year 2017/18 from the budget of the District for the fiscal year 2017/18 and from the values
of property transmitted to this Board by County Auditors;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the rate of taxes of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District, for the fiscal year July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018, is hereby fixed at .0084 percent, which
equates to $8.40 per one hundred thousand dollars of assessed value of property. Per Measure AA, the
rate of taxes of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, for the fiscal year July 1, 2017 to June
30, 2018, is hereby fixed at .0063 percent, which equates to $6.30 per one hundred thousand dollars of
assessed value of property. Per Measure RR, the rate of taxes of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District, for the fiscal year July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018, is hereby fixed at .0021 percent, which equates
to $2.10 per one hundred thousand dollars of assessed value of property. AND BE IT FURTHER
RESOLVED that the Secretary shall immediately after the effective date of this resolution transmit to the
County Auditor of the Counties in which the District is situated a statement of such tax rate. The effective
date of this resolution is August 10, 2017.

Adopted:

Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary



Kii

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL:

/(Z/{g,fm, %% __ Ay 2c1%

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 7/20/2017

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: David Scherer

Dept: Maintenance and Engineering

T2 05—

Signature/Date:

a8/i/17

(Féner Counsel
‘@?v%’

Controller/Treasurer|

!
O,

District Secretary C

-]

— C

o !

e/1/A

MO3 Interlocking Track Materials

PURPOSE:

To request Board authorization for the General Manager to award Invitation For Bid No.
9033 to Voestalpine Nortrak, Cheyenne, WY. in the amount of $1,280,380.50 (includes all
taxes) for the purchase of M03 Special Trackwork.

DISCUSSION:

This contract will provide the special trackwork required for the District's replacement of the
MO3 interlocking including concrete ties, plating, fabrication of switch points and frogs

and guard rails, crossties, crossing panels for Maintenance of Way access points No. 5 and
6 and all other components required to rebuild the existing interlocking. The M03
Interlocking is located between MP 0.49 and MP 0.67 on the M Line, between the West
Oakland, 12th Street and Lake Merritt Stations. These turnouts will be manufactured using
concrete railroad ties which will extend the life of the turnouts; reduce maintenance
requirements; and increase reliability and ride quality for patrons.

The District currently has 14 interlockings consisting of 58 turnouts that were installed during
the original system construction that need replacement. The interlockings have been
prioritized for replacement and the M03 interlocking is the second at-grade ballast

interlocking to be replaced.

This is a one (1) year Estimated Quantity Contract. Pursuant to the terms of the District’s
standard Estimated Quantity Contract, during the term of the contract the District is required



MO3 Interlocking Track Materials (cont.)

to purchase from the supplier a minimum amount of 50% of the contract bid price. Upon
Board approval of this contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to purchase
up to 150% of the contract bid price, subject to the availability of funding.

A notice requesting bids was published on June 20, 2017. At the same time, this solicitation
was also posted on the Vendor Portal. Correspondence was sent four (4) prospective
bidders inviting them to view and bid via the portal. Bids were opened on July 11, 2017 and
one (1) bid was received.

Bidder
Voestalpine Nortrak
; : o Brin . Grand Total including
Description Unit Price: Qty: 9.25% Sales Tax
1]|Crossover Switch $312,315.00 1EA $ 341,204.14
2|Turnout Switch ’ $152,563.00:| = 1EA $ 166,675.08
3|Crossing Panels $311,00 240EA | S 81,544.20
4{Standard Ties $272.00 2000EA | $ 594,320,00
5|Switch Machines $29,485.00 3 EA S 96,637.08
| Grand Total] S 1,280,380.50 |

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $ 1,316,200.00.

Pursuant to the Special Provisions, bids were evaluated based on the total bid price. Staff
determined that the apparent low bidder, Voestalpine Nortrak, submitted a responsive bid
and based on the comparison to the independent cost estimate the bid pricing was fair and
reasonable.

The District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to
Invitations for Bid. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business
Enterprise (MBE) and Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Availability Percentages for this
IFB.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $1,280,381, including 9.25 % sales tax, for contract award in response to IFB
No. 9033 submitted by voestalpine Nortrak is included in the total budget for FMS project
#15CQ002- Replace Rails, Ties, Fasteners Ph3 from Bond Measure RR. The Office of
Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The
following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality
to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this commitment
will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.



MO3 Interlocking Track Materials (cont.)

As of July 14,2017, $617,146,525 is the total budget for this project from the following
sources:

Measure RR General Obligation Bonds BART 616,949,279

BART Operating to Capital Allocation BART 197,246

s s g s e

BART has expended $6,221,424, committed $3,878,678, and reserved $24,001,544 to date
for other project actions. This action will commit $1,280,381 leaving an available fund
balance of $581,764,498.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:

Reject the bid and re-advertise the contract. This is not likely to lead to increased v
competition or lower prices and would result in delay to the replacement of the existing -
interlocking which is nearing the end of its useful life.

RECOMMENDATION:

Based on the analysis by staff and certified by Controller-Treasurer that the funds are
available for this purpose; it is recommended that the board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 9033 for the
procurement of Special Track Work to Voestalpine Nortrak for the bid price of
$1,280,380.50 including all taxes.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: ) GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
‘ Aoy 2¢q
,‘Zt')./{' ;cn it i K | |
T
DATE: 6/9/2017 4 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: David Scherer

Dept: Maintenance and Engineering

éne Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District SecretaryA}BAR
D e | W(B g

N Ay I T A

Gauntlet Track Materials

——

PURPOSE:

To request Board Authorization to authorize a purchase order to Voestalpine Nortrak Inc., of
Seattle WA in the amount of $138,807.41 (includes all taxes) for the purchase of Gauntlet
Track Materials

DISCUSSION:

This Contract will provide the special trackwork required for the District’s Maintenance &
Engineering Department to receive and accept new 800-foot rail deliveries. Dual gage
(Gauntlet) track is required to accept Union Pacific standard gage track train deliveries and
allow for BART-gage rail vehicles to operate on the standard gage track. This Contract will
provide for all the switch components necessary for a dual gage turnout including #10
119RE Rigid Bolted Gauntlet Frog, Frog Plate Package, Switch Plate Package and a
Submersible Switch Machine with framework for use in the Hayward Storage Yard.

BART Track Maintenance has constructed the spur track necessary to accommodate the rail
train. With the purchase of these track components, Track Maintenance will complete
construction of the switch serving this track in preparation for new rail procurement
deliveries supporting Measure RR track rehabilitation work.

Three vendors were identified as possible suppliers and each was sent a request for quote
on January 20, 2017. Only one (1) valid quote was received, while the two other vendors
were unable to provide a quotation due to the requested Gauntlet Track’s unique design and
‘current capacities.



Gauntlet Track Materials (cont.)

SUPPLIER Unit Price 1 each Grand Total
including Sales Tax

Vostalpine Nortrak Inc. $126,476.00 $138,807.41

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $118,700.00

Staff determined that the apparent low quote from, Voestalpine Nortrak Inc. submitted a
responsive quotation, based on the comparison to the Independent Cost Estimate.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $138,807, including 9.75% sales tax, for the procurement of
Gauntlet Track Materials is included in the total project budget for FMS project #15CQ002 -
Rails, Ties, Fasteners. The office of the Controller / Treasurer certifies that funds are
currently available to meet this obligation. The following depicts funds assigned to the
referenced project and tracks funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to
meet this commitment will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of June 30,2017, $617,146,525 is the total budget for this project from the following
sources: .

FUND GROUP SOURCE TOTAL
Measure RR General Obligation Bonds BART $616,949,279
BART Operating to Capitol Allocation BART | $197,246

- Grand Total $617,146,525

BART has expended $6,222,174, committed $3,877,928, and reserved $25,317,744 to date
for other actions. This action will commit $138,807.41 leaving an available fund balance of
$581,589,872.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.



Gauntlet Track Materials (cont.)

ALTERNATIVE:

Reject the one valid quote and assign staff to research different suppliers that can
manufacture and supply this product. Rejection, however, is not likely to lead to increased
competition or lower pricing. This will result in delay to the installation of the track.

RECOMMENDATION:

On the basis of analysis by staff and certification by the Controller-Treasurer that the funds
are available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award the procurement of Gauntlet Track Materials to
Voestalpine Nortrak Inc for the quoted price of $138,807.41 including all taxes.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

/ Approve and Forward to the August 10, 2017 Board Meeting

DATE: 7/18/2017

A
Originator/Prepared by: Hamed Tafaghodi| Geper ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
Dept: Maintenance gnd Epgineering ' . A <
7 TR e
' / | ' ;
{1

Signature/Dat \
[ 1]

\
7/23/11 ealia 0| 1]%
Reject the Single Bid for Contract 09AF-111, TBT Cross Passage Doors

' Replacement

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes

PURPOSE: To request that the Board reject the single Bid for Contract No. 09AF-111,
TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement.

DISCUSSION: The Work of this Contract consists of providing all labor, equipment,
materials, and services required for removing and replacing the cross passage doors that
provide emergency egress in the Transbay-Tube (TBT) and the two transition structures
including door monitoring sensors, as indicated in the Contract Documents.

This is a Security Sensitive Information Contract. On March 2, 2017, the Advance Notice to
Bidders and Invitation to Bid was emailed to 97 prospective Bidders and Invitation to Bid
documents were sent to 24 plan rooms. The Contract was advertised on March 2, 2017 in
local publications. A total of 3 firms received security clearance and a total of 3 firms
purchased copies of the Contract Documents. A pre-Bid meeting was conducted on May
17, 2017 with 3 prospective Bidders attending. There were three Addenda issued for this

Contract.

A single Bid was received and publicly opened on June 27, 2017 as follows:

BIDDER LOCATION TOTAL BID
Rodan Builders, Inc. Burlingame, CA $9,089,900.00
Engineer’s Estimate $5,100,347.00

The construction cost of this Contract is funded with Measure RR bond funds. After an



Reject the Single Bid for Contract 09AF-111, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement (cont.)

analysis of the single Bid received, Staff determined that the Bid price is unreasonable.

Staff believes that if the Contract is re-packaged and re-advertised, the District can receive
multiple, competitive Bids at prices which are reasonable, more in line with the Engineer’s
Estimate. For this reason, it would be more prudent use of District’s funds if the Bid for this
Contract is rejected and the Contract is re-advertised.

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact resulting from rejection of the Bid.

ALTERNATIVES: The alternative is to award this Contract to this single Bidder, at a cost
of $9,089,900. This will result in a substantial increase in the project cost that cannot be

justified. , :
. RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the following motion

MOTION: The Single Bid for Contract No. 09AF-111, TBT Cross Passage Doors
Replacement is rejected and the General Manager is authorized to re-advertise the Contract.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

ZL#M P 4’[4&; Zo|]

DATE: 7/7/2017 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Isaac Lim era ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
Dept: District Architect s /
Q{ EA \/'

Signature/Date:

#/03/17 5/(:}-

Reject All Bids for Contract No. 15TH-120 Water Intrusion Repair at Train Control
‘ Rooms

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization to reject all Bids for Contract No. 15TH-120,
Water Intrusion Repair at Train Control Rooms

DISCUSSION: This Contract is for the furnishing of equipment, materials and services
required to remove and replace roofing at Daly City, Fruitvale, and San Leandro Station train
control rooms and to install a waterproofing membrane in the trackway over the Daly City
train control room.

The District provided advanced notice to 175 prospective Bidders on May 5, 2017, and
Contract Documents were provided to 22 plan rooms and minority assistance organizations
on May 5, 2017. The Contract was advertised on May 5, 2017. A total of 14 firms
downloaded copies of the Contract Documents. A pre-Bid meeting and site tour were
conducted on May 16, 2017, with one prospective Bidder attending the meeting and site
tour. On June 27, 2017, two Bids were received:

Bidder Location Total Bid
Prime Tech Construction LLC Auburn, CA : $500,000.00
Rockridge Builders Oakland, CA $1,298,760.00
Engineer’s Estimate $843,000.00

The low bid is $343,000.00 or 40.7% below the Engineer’s Estimate and the second low bid
is $455,760.00 or 54.1% higher than the Engineer’s Estimate. A detailed evaluation found

a large disparity between the bid prices submitted by the bidders and the Engineer's
Estimate for the fluid applied waterproofing membrane work in the trackway at Daly



Reject All Bids for Contract No. 15TH-120 Water Intrusion Repair at Train Control Rooms (cont.)

City. The low bidder submitted a bid price of $37,000 for this item of work and the second
low bidder submitted a price of $529,670, whereas the Engineer's Estimate is $250,000.
Staff believes that the Bidders may have misinterpreted the more complicated and restrictive
trackway work area specified in the Bid Documents.

Staff recommends rejection of all Bids. Staff will re-evaluate and further clarify the work
requirements in the Bid Documents in hopes of receiving more Bids.

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no fiscal impact resulting from rejection of all Bids.

ALTERNATIVES: The alternative is to award this Contract. However, due to apparent
ambiguity in the Bid Documents, award may result in exorbitant change requests and/or
claims from the Contractor.

RECOMMENDATION: Based on analysis by staff, it is recommended that the Board
adopt the following motion:

MOTION: All Bids for Contract No. 15TH-120, Water Intrusion Repair At Train Control
Rooms, are rejected.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

| GENE MANAG! ROVAL: —~ GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
DATE: 6/2 &017 i v BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes
PSR

Originator/Prepared by: Marla Blagg Xen ounsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary
Dep De ent ' N J . y<
‘ Uy >
' ‘j A ¢

{

:?-//I/ﬁ [ 1 (1)

Resolution Adopting the BART 2017 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

st

PURPOSE: ‘ :
That the BART Board approve a Resolution adopting the 2017 San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, set forth in its report.

DISCUSSION:

In the late 1990's, the Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) changed its
disaster-response-driven system to a proactive hazard risk reduction management system.
The Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA), provides an opportunity for states, tribes, and
local governments to identify innovative strategies to hazard mitigation planning. The DMA
also created a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), making funds available for the
development of plans or for hazard mitigation projects. Hazard Mitigation is defined as any
sustained action taken to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life and property from a
hazard event.

The Board previously adopted the 2010 Update to the 2005 Association of Bay Area
Governments (ABAG) "Taming Natural Disasters" Districts' Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
Annex. In 2016, ABAG no longer maintained a Regional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan for
Cities, Counties, and Special Districts. Therefore, utilizing previous information from the
ABAG plan, BART updated our Local Hazard Mitigation Plan in 2017 and submitted it to
FEMA for approval. An approved Local Hazard Mitigation Plan will provide the District
with eligibility to seek pre-disaster mitigation grant funding. The District was previously
successful in obtaining $9 million in grants to fund three different seismic projects.



Adoption of the BART 2017 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

On June 2, 2017, FEMA completed their review of the BART Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
and determined that our plan is eligible for final approval pending adoption by the Board.
Formal adoption documentation must be submitted to FEMA Region IX office within one
calendar year from the date of eligibility, or the entire plan must be updated and resubmitted
for review. FEMA requires the formal adoption of the plan prior to receiving any grant
funding. Therefore, to be eligible to seek 2017 grant funding, the Board is required to adopt
the 2017 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. In connection with the Plan, the District has
submitted a Notice of Intent (NOI) to FEMA to seek three million dollars in future grant
mitigation funding (FY 17/18). This Resolution must be adopted in order to secure this
funding.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Adoption of the Resolution will not result in any specific expenses for BART but will allow
BART to be eligible for FEMA funding for the next five years. If this Resolution is not
approved, the District will not be eligible to apply for future grant mitigation funding. In
addition, in the event of a natural disaster, there could be significant fiscal impacts to the
District which could be avoided or reduced if the District takes steps to adopt this plan.

ALTERNATIVES:

Take no action - In the event that BART does not adopt the 2017 LHMP, it will not be
eligible to receive FEMA grant funding for future mitigation projects, until the District has an
approved Plan. The District may also be impacted fiscally with reduced FEMA
reimbursements through post-disaster funding.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION:
For the Board to adopt the Resolution adopting the 2017 BART Local Hazard Mitigation

Plan.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting the 2017
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
Resolution No. ####

WHEREAS, the Bay Area is subject to various earthquake-related hazards such as ground shaking,
liquefaction, landslides, fault surface rupture, and tsunamis; and

WHEREAS, the Bay Area is subject to various weather-related hazards such as wildfires, floods, and
landslides; and

WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (hereafter referred to as the District)
recognizes that disasters do not recognize c1ty, county, or special district boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the District seeks to maintain and enhance both a disaster-resistant District and region by
reducing the potential loss of life, property damage, and environmental degradation from natural disasters, while
accelerating economic recovery from those disasters; and

WHEREAS, the District is committed to increasing the disaster resistance of the infrastructure, heaith,
housing, economy, government services, education, environment, and land use systems within the District; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 requires all cities, counties and special districts to
have an adopted Locail Hazard Mitigation Plan in order to be eligible to receive disaster mitigation funding from
FEMA; and

BE IT RESOLVED that the District adopts and accepts the 2017 BART Local Hazard Mitigation Plan as its
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the District commits to continuing to take those actions and to initiating
further actions, as deemed appropriate, and as set forth in the District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Adopted, August 10, 2017 ‘



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL:

2 4&7 ZC‘{?

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 6/30/2017

fal

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: lan Griffiths
Dept: Planning, Development &

Construction

32l

Controller/Treasurer|

District Secretary

1l

Signature/Ze: %/ 8/2/2 orF
V/ -

MOU with the City of Concord for the inclusion of the North Concord/Martinez

BART Station property within the Concord Reuse Project Specific Plan

PURPOSE: To authorize the General Manager to execute a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) between BART and the City of Concord for the inclusion of the

North Concord / Martinez BART Station property within the Concord Reuse Project

Specific Plan and Infrastructure Master Plan to enable future transit-oriented development.

DISCUSSION:

The North Concord / Martinez BART station (Station), which opened in 1995, occupies

approximately 18 acres of land and includes 1,977 surface parking spaces (BART
Property). The Station is located adjacent to the 5,028-acre former Concord Naval

Weapons Station (CNWS), which was closed in 2005. Following the base closure, the City
of Concord undertook a seven-year community-based visioning process for the CNWS and

BART’s property. BART participated in this process, culminating in the adoption of the
Concord Reuse Project (CRP) Area Plan in 2012. The Area Plan details the community’s
vision for the CNWS and BART property. The Area Plan envisions the BART Property

and land within half a mile of the Station being developed over time as a mixed use, walkable
transit-oriented community and employment center. The Area Plan’s treatment of the BART
Property is generally consistent with BART’s adopted TOD policy.

InJ anuary 2014 the City of Concord issued a request for qualifications (RFQ) for a master
developer to develop the first 500-acre phase of the Area Plan. BART staff participated on
the Technical Evaluation Committee and selection committee for the RFQ process. In May

2016, the City selected Lennar/Five Points (Lennar) as the master developer. The City




MOU with the City of Concord for the inclusion of the North Concord/Martinez BART Station property within the Concord
Reuse Project Specific Plan

entered into an agreement with Lennar whereby Lennar would complete a Specific Plan and
an Infrastructure Master Plan for the full developable portion (approximately 2.300 acres) of
the former CNWS property. This arrangement excluded the BART Property. The Specific
Plan process began in January 2017 and two community workshops have a]ready been
conducted.

Consistent with BART’s TOD policy, BART intends to undertake a competitive selection
process to identify a developer to develop the BART Property. In anticipation of a future
RFQ for developers, BART staff recommends that the BART Property be added to the area
being assessed through the ongoing Specific Plan and Infrastructure Master Plan processes
for the following reasons:

e Participating in the Specific Plan will prepare the BART Property for TOD

» A single Specific Plan process will be less confusmg and time-consuming for local
communities

¢ Planning and environmental approval for TOD on BART Property can be streamlined
by leveraging the ongoing Specific Plan

o An integrated vision of the entire Station Area is more likely to optimize station access
and placemaking over the long term

o Significant efficiencies in building backbone infrastructure including roads and sewers
could be realized through participating in the Infrastructure Master Plan

This effort is consistent with the adopted TOD Policy, which states that BART
will “Proactively support local jurisdictions in creating station area plans and land use
policies that: a) encourage transit-supportive, mixed-use development on and around station
properties, b) enhance the value of BART land, and c) enhance the performance of the

- BART system as a whole.”

In order for the BART Property to be added to Specific Plan and Infrastructure Master Plan,
which is being funded by Lennar under an agreement between Lennar and the City of
Concord, an MOU between the City of Concord and BART has been developed with the
following proposed terms:

o Lennar and the City would create a development concept for BART’s property as part
of the overall Specific Plan, including assessing potential environmental impacts of the
development in the City CEQA document. BART would have the ability to provide
significant input into the development concept.

e The development vision would be guided by the goals for development outlined for
BART Property in the CRP Area Plan, which categorizes BART Property within the
“Transit-Oriented District Core” designation, as well as BART Policies and Guidelines.

o Reimbursement to the City for the expense of the additional work arising from
inclusion of BART Property within the Specific Plan is subject to BART entering into
an agreement (the “BART Developer Contract”) with a Developer selected pursuant to



MOU with the City of Concord for the inclusion of the North Concord/Martinez BART Station property within the Concord
Reuse Project Specific Plan

a competitive RFQ process. The schedule for reimbursement payments from BART's
developer to the City would be identified in BART's development RFQ.

e BART’s pro-rata share of eligible reimbursable costs will be calculated based on the
proportionate share of development on the BART Property as compared to the rest of
the Specific Plan Area.

o BART is not obligated to make any payments to the City. The obligation for a
Developer to repay the City of Concord shall expire in fifty years if no BART
Developer Contract is entered into or if the Specific Plan ultimately does not include
the BART Property.

o The MOU would automatically termmate if the proposed Specific Plan and City CEQA
Document have not been approved or certified by the Concord City Council by July
31, 2022.

If this motion is approved, the following should occur within the next six months:

e The City and BART will establish a staff technical advisory committee comprised of an
equal number of City and BART representatives to direct plan development and
resolve technical BART-property-related issues |

o The City will include BART property within site plans presented and discussed at the
next community workshop planned for September 2017

o BART staff will advance an RFQ solicitation for developers for the North
Concord/Martinez Station

" FISCAL IMPACT: BART staff time will be involved in the preparation and review of the
Specific Plan, and is covered under the adopted FY18 budget. When BART enters into a
BART Developer Contract with a Developer for the development of the BART property, the
BART Developer Contract will specify that the Developer is obligated to pay the City for
BART’s pro rata share of the reimbursable costs. Therefore, entering into an MOU with the
City of Concord will result in no direct fiscal impact to BART, other than staff time.

ALTERNATIVES: Do not participate in the City’s Specific Plan process and instead
undertake a separate specific plan and CEQA document process in order to pursue transit-
oriented development at the BART Property in the future. This option is believed to be
more costly and time-consuming for any future developer BART might partner with than
participating in the City’s Specific Plan as it would require duplication of efforts, such as
community outreach, already being undertaken by the City and its developer.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adopt the following motion:

MOTION: The General Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to execute a



MOU with the City of Concord for the inclusion of the North Concord/Martinez BART Station property within the Concord
Reuse Project Specific Plan

Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Concord to include the North
Concord/Martinez BART Station within the Concord Reuse Project Spemﬁc Plan and
Infrastructure Master Plan.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

-TO: ~ Board of Directors ) DATE: August 4, 2017
FROM: Robert Powers

SUBJECT: BART to Livermore Extension Project Update — For Information

At the August 10, 2017 Board meeting, staff will present an update for information purposes on
the BART to Livermore Project.

On July 31, 2017, BART released for public comment the Draft Environmental Impact Report
(DEIR) for the BART to Livermore Extension Project. BART will be accepting comments on the -
DEIR for a 45-day period ending on September 14, 2017. The DEIR contains information on
ridership, capital costs, operating and maintenance costs, right-of-way needs, environmental
impacts, and proposed mitigations to reduce significant environmental impacts for the

alternatives under consideration.

Please contact Bob Powers (510) 874-7410 if you have any questions.

Vhk e R

Grace Crunican




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: August 4, 2017
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Regional Measure 3

As you are aware, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is sponsoring a state bill
authorizing it to place a potential bridge toll increase (called Regional Measure 3) on a future
regionwide ballot. Senate Bill 595 (Beall) has recently been amended to include a potential
expenditure plan, and, at its recent meeting in July, MTC has approved a request to add seven
new amendments to the bill. In addition, several local agencies have requested major changes to
the proposed expenditure plan. At the board meeting on August 10, staff will review the bill’s
current status and discuss next steps.

Z:f Y. 72—-
Vrace Crunican




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Memorandum

TO: Board of Directors ' DATE: August4, 2017
FROM: Independent Police Auditor
SUBJECT: Ratification of BART Police Citizen Review Board Members

Chapter 2-02 of the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model) provides that each BART Director
shall appoint one BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) Member. The recently elected
BART Directors representing Districts 1 and 7 seek to replace the current BPCRB appointees
with Kenneth Loo and Aman Sebahtu, respectively. The proposed motions below would remove
the current District 1 and 7 appointees from the BPCRB and ratify the appointments of Mr. Loo
and Mr. Sebahtu, who would each complete the term of service that ends on June 30, 2018. Both
would be eligible for reappointment, pending ratification, to a full two-year term thereafter.
Information about Mr. Loo and Mr. Sebahtu accompanies this memorandum.

In light of the selection of Mr. Loo and Mr. Sebahtu by Directors Simon and Allen, please find
below two proposed motions for your consideration.

- Proposed Motions:
a. The Board of Directors resolves to remove the BPCRB appointees currently representing

Districts 1 and 7.
b. The Board of Directors ratifies the appointment of the following 1nd1v1duals to the
BPCRB with a term that expires on June 30, 2018:

Kenneth Loo — District 1
Aman Sebahtu — District 7

M -

ussell G. Bloom

Attachments
cc: Board Appointed Officers



Kenneth Loo

OVERVIEW: Over 20 years of experience working with the general public and government agencies of all levels in
emergency management including public safety and private security.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTICT, 2002 - PRESENT

Fire Captain —

AMERICAN RED CROSS, 1997 — March 2015

Health & Safety Instructor —

INTERNATIONAL TRADE AND INVESTMENT OFFICE, Academic yea.ts 1998 - 1999

Assistant, Environmental Trade and Export Program —
VANTIVE CORPORATION (Cusrently part of ORACLE), Sumsmer of 1998 and 1999

Accountant —

EDUCATION:
Califotnia State University, San Jose
TEACHING CREDENTIALS, 2009
Adult Education — Safety

California State University, Long Beach-
MASTERS OF SCIENCE DEGREE, 2007
Emetgency Service Administration

Univessity of California, Davis
BACHELOR OF ARTS DEGREE, 2000
«  Mare Island Reuse Plan, Co-Authored
Assisted with an academic report of possible reuse plans for Mare Island after the military based closed
and the property was to be civilianized and taken back by local government.
. . Cal Aggie Newspaper, Repottet
Formed Intetview and Writing Skills on Daily Deadlines
. Environmental Policy & Planning Commission, Commissionet
Reviewed environmental impact policies for the campus as directed by the Associated Student Body.

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION / AFFILIATIONS:
+ USFA Finance/Administration Section Chief (FEMA)
» USFA Inddent Management Team — Type III (FEMA)
+ Emergency Management Specialist (CSTT)
+ Emetgency Management: Earthquakes, Disaster Recovety, Disaster Mitigation (CSTT)
« Emergency Planning (FEMA)
» Emergency Medical Technician (EMT-1)
« Safety Officer (CSFM)
» Multiple P.O.S.T. courses
» Ametican Heart Association Basic Life Support (CPR/ AED) Instructor
« Incident Command Systems - Advanced

INTERESTS:
« International Travel “off the beaten path” - +31 countries
. SCUBA Diving
. Teaching (including for non-profits such as Latkin Street Youth and New Patent Groups)
+ Volunteering for vatious Jocal non-profits
+ Leukemia & Lymphoma Society (Fundraiser — over $20K)
« American Red Cross / American Heart Association (Instructor)
+ American Lung Association (Firefighter Stair Climb Team — Group Leader)

Page 1 0f1



AMAN SEBAHTU

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

National Council on Crime and Delinquency, Oakland, CA January 2017 - Present
Community Violence Prevention Program Manager

Promotes and implements innovative and equitable solutions to foster the well-being of
youth, families, and c2ommunities through research, technical assistance, and collaborative
initiatives. Develops research and training to build community capacity to meaningfully
collaborate with system stakeholders to improve outcomes for youth and communities of
color. Manages a portfolio of community driven violence prevention research and initiatives.
Supports the federal monitoring of the Los Angeles County Sherriff's Department (LASD)
and oversees LASD’s compliance with the community engagement requirements of its
settlement agreement with the Department of Justice. Additional responslblhhes include
fundraising, strategic planmng, and supervision of staff.

The W. Haywood Burns Institute, Oakland, CA July 2015 - January 2017
Site Manager

Lead community and criminal justice system stakeholders through a data-driven, consensus-
based process designed to identify and change policies and practices that contribute to racial
disparities in criminal justice systems across the country. Provided technical assistance to
public agencies and community based organizations on best practices related to community
based alternatives to incarceration. Managed site teams and served as lead for all
evaluations, conference presentations, workshops, community forums, and trainings.

Office of African American Male Achievement, OUSD, Oakland CA  June 2014-June 2015
Strategic Plan Development Team, Khepera Consulting

Worked with team of AAMA staff and education policy experts to develop new strategic
plan for AAMA. Conducted interviews of various key stakeholders including community
members, district administrators, funders, school board members, educators, and students to
collect information on best practices and areas of improvement. Made recommendations to
the strategic plan based on research of best practices and themes that emerged from
qualitative data collection. Contributed to two publications: “The Black Sorrise: Oakland
Unified School District’s Commitment to Address and Eliminate Institutional Racism” and
“Lean Into the Wind: Emerging Themes and Strategic Recommendations for AAMA 2.0”.

Sacramento City Unified School District, Sacramento, CA July 2013- Feb 2014
School Discipline Policy Consultant, Khepera Consulting

Facilitated development of new school discipline policy. Responsibilities included
researching and briefing a diverse stakeholder task force on state and national trends and
current best practices in school policy reform including restorative justice, Positive Behavior
Interventions and Supports (PBIS), Social Emotional Learning (SEL), and Culturally
Responsive Classroom Management. Incorporated feedback from community and task force
members that informed discipline policy proposal for district leadership.

Law Office of Aman Sebahtu, Oakland, CA Dec 2011-July 2015

Attorney
Drafted and reviewed various contracts. Filed complaints, handled negotiations, prepared

1



AMAN SEBAHTU

briefs for arbitration, and reached settlements on behalf of employees in labor disputes.
Made numerous special appearances on behalf of other attorneys in criminal, civil, and
family court preliminary hearings. Represented clients in personal injury lawsuits.

EDUCATION

University of San Francisco School of Law, San Francisco, CA

Juris Doctor, May 2010 _
Best Oral Argument Award Winner, 2008 Moot Court Competition
Public Interest Law Certificate Recipient with Distinction
Haitian Refugee Temporary Protected Status Project Lead, March 2010
Teacher, Street Law Program at Berkeley High School, January — May 2009
Research Assistant, Professor Rhonda Magee, August 2009-May 2010

Emory University, Atlanta, GA

Bachelor of Arts, Spring 2007 _
Major - Sociology; Minor - African American Studies
Dean’s Honor List: Fall 2006, Spring 2007

BAR ADMISSION
California State Bar, 2011

BOARD MEMBERSHIP
The Brotherhood of the Elders Network, 2015-Present

The Mentoring Center, 2016-Present

City of Oakland Blue Ribbon Commission on Violence Prevention, July 2017-present




\I

North Concord / Martinez TOD
MOU with City of Concord

ey ’ u g o g

L' nge o |

August 10, 2017
BART Board of Directors






North Concord / Martinez TOD

Purpose

1. Request Board authorization for GM to enter
iInto MOU with City of Concord to include BART
station property in Concord Reuse Specific
Plan and Infrastructure Master Plan

2. Receive Board input on development
objectives for future TOD RFQ for North
Concord/Martinez BART station

BART Planning, Development & Construction





Concord Reuse Project Timeline

2012 | 2013 | 2014 = 2015 . 2016 2017 2018 2019 | 2020+
Area * Concord Reuse Prolect
Plan Area Plan Approved _ . : : : | : . . : :
Process || * Master Developer * Lennar/Frve Pornts . %complete
e - RFQissued selected j . Specific Plan + CEQA
BaRT v Sevel Specific Plan + |
Seallzcetﬁirone;reozggg . Infrastructure Master Plan
Included BART Participation Community Workshops ‘ I Construction
: : 3 ) ) 0 e Preferred Alternative :
: Selected
Clty of Concord : : : f_' . : ;

BART T D R B :UEURERENEL . BART Board
: : : : : : ' ' Enter into: MOU for

Specmc Plan; getlnput
RFQ prlnC|pIe$ -

Developer Project Refinement / [ NISSIttTate g
Solicitation/  peveloper Agreement | /o3
Selection

3¢ BART Board

Authorrze Exclusrve Approve
Negotiation: development
Agreement:with agreement +
recommended ground lease
developer -

BART Planning, Development & Construction





Concord Reuse Project Area Plan

Adopted 2012

A=FTU | Legend

Transit Oriented Districts

B G AR ®

I North Concord TOD Core

I North Concord TOD
Neighborhood

Tournament facility
and adjacent park

%, Neighborhoods

R AwPOR

‘ Central Neighborhood
.'\?f' B Vvillage Center
Village Neighborhood

f Civic and Institutional

Source: CRP Area Plan
Concordreuseproject.org

BART Planning, Development & Construction

Commercial

@@=

[ Commercial Flex

Conservation, Open Space and
Recreation Lands

(B
Conservation Open Space
B Greenways, Citywide Parks,
and Toumament Facilities
Not shown: Potential bike and
pedestrian facilities in the

Regional Park.
ﬂ'ﬂ‘: é Primary Circulation Network
B Campus ﬂ =
B First Resporder Training —— Through Strests
Center Collector Streets
Reuse Area Plan ~ 5,000 ac
Conservation ~ 2,700 ac
Specific Plan Area ~ 2,300 ac
Phase 1 (Lennar) ~ 500 ac
!
{ i BART Property ~ 18ac
¥ g
- ST Pag ¢





IHAHT

Figure 3-5: North Concord TOD Core

“North Concord TOD Core”

Number of Districts
Approximate Acres
Approximate Homes
Approximate Commercial Floor
Space (square feet)

Dwelling Units / Gross

District Acre (min-max)
Dwelling Units / Met
Residential Acre (min-max)

Met Floor Area Ratio (FAR) / Com-
meercial and Mixed-Use Parcel
(min-max)

Required Mix

! -
,|I' :

Additional Appropriate Uses

Convenience Standard
0 fow
0 ,.‘ Concord Blvd

= ] T

Maximum Block Perimeter

2 Off-Street Parking Location
Cfﬂlﬂ- %\ = ¢

Concord Reuse Project Area Plan

Table 3-5: North Concord TOD Core Profile

1

55

700 (not required)
3,000,000

Housing optional up to a maximum of
20 du/gross district acre

60-150

20-4.0

Offices
Retail and services
Plaza and Pocket Park

Dining and entertainmeant

Multi-unit housing, possibly incuding
Special neads housing

Performing arts facility

Hotal

Community facilities

Cultural/civic facilities

1/4 mile

(shared vehicle facility 1/8 mile)

1,600

Underground or embedded parking
structuras

Source: CRP Area Plan
Concordreuseproject.org

BART Planning, Development & Construction 4





North Concord / Martinez BART

Station Profile

Existing Mode Split (2015)

. __Bus, train, or
Bicycle: 4% —. . ,/ other transit: 1%

Walk: 6% ——

Drop off / taxi / \& Drive Alone:
other: 19% ‘ 66.4%

Passenger Home Origins
2015 Station Profile Survey

Concord/Martinez/Pacheco Carpool: 3.3%

East Contra Costa County

Solano/Other

Source: 2015 Station Profile Survey (Home Origin)

. ~2,800 riders per day (3" lowest in system) * Current Station Typology

« Vehicle parking = 1,977 spaces Auto-Dependent
 Busroutes =2 « Aspirational Station Typology

* Bus positions = 15 Balanced Intermodal

BART Planning, Development & Construction 5





mw Concord Reuse Project Specific
ba : P

Plan Status

Lennar is completing Specific Plan for full 2,300 acres
City is leading CEQA Portion of Specific Plan
18-acre BART property not currently included

Project Timeline

March 18, 2017 — Community Workshop 1
June 17, 2017 — Community Workshop 2
Sept 23, 2017 — Community Workshop 3

Sept 2017
« Confirmation of preferred plan

» City begins CEQA (contingent on Record of Decision from Navy)
Nov 2018 — Completion of Specific Plan

BART Planning, Development & Construction





Proposal to add BART Property to

Specific Plan

Advantages

o Efficient - leverages existing City process
 Understandable public outreach process
e Integrated vision of entire Station Area
 Prepares BART property for TOD

BART Planning, Development & Construction 7





Proposal to add BART Property to

Specific Plan Area

MOU Terms / Reimbursement

1) Specific Plan guided by BART policies
« TOD Policy / TOD Guidelines

» Affordable Housing targets
« Station Access Policy

2) Specific Plan should locate a proportional share of total “TOD Core”
development on BART Property to optimize BART land value

3) Reimbursement to City for additional planning work arising from
inclusion of BART property is subject to BART entering into
agreement with developer to develop BART property

4) Additional planning costs to be covered by BART’s future developer

5) MOU would terminate if Specific Plan / CEQA not approved by 2022

BART Planning, Development & Construction 8





mw Solicitation Process — Changes
’

Since TOD Policy

Developer solicitation following plan completion

New streamlined, transparent BART process

- Clear objectives up front that are used to evaluate project

- Retain flexibility in negotiations

- TOD Guidelines explain BART’s policies and process
(www.bart.gov/about/business/tod/guidelines)

3. Project

1. Pre- 2. Refinement
Solicitation » Solicitation/ &
Selection Developer

Agreement

BART Planning, Development & Construction





IHAH.T

1. Pre-
Solicitation

Establish and
Prioritize
Objectives

Action:
Authorize Staff
to Issue
RFQ/P

2.
Solicitation/
Selection

Action:
Approve
selected

developer &
Authorize
Exclusive
Negotiating
Agreement
(ENA) — starts
an 18to0 24
month window

- /

3. Project
Refinement
& Developer
Agreement

Review project
concept
design

Staff report on
objectives

Annual Project
Updates

Extend ENA

as appropriate
\_ /

Typical Developer Solicitation Process:
Board Involvement Overview

City Entitles
and Adopts
EIR

Action:
Approve
Ground Lease
and Adopt EIR

Approve major
changes if

needed
10





W Objectives for North Concord RFO:
ool - 2

Preliminary Draft (1 of 2)

A. Complete Communities

1. Maximum development potential on BART property, compatible with area plan

2. Create a high quality public realm at and around the BART station to enhance
sense of place

3. Create a new, vibrant mixed-use commercial center with jobs and local services*

B. Sustainable Communities Strategy

1. Catalyze new, more intensive uses in North Concord real estate market

2. Design should maximize TOD while logically integrating necessary BART facilities

C. Ridership

1. Net gain in ridership to BART

2. Locate transit-oriented jobs closest to the station to encourage commutes on

BART*

* Pending vision established in Specific Plan and Infrastructure Master Plan

BART Planning, Development & Construction 11





W Objectives for North Concord RFQ:
ool - 2

Preliminary Draft (2 of 2)

D. Value Creation and Value Capture
1. Maximize value return from BART infrastructure, financial terms, and fare box

2. Street and other improvements needed for TOD are funded by entities other
than BART

E. Transportation Choice
1. Ensure TOD supports BART’s station access performance targets

2. Offer BART patrons equal or improved access to the station, establishing
parking and access investment needs in planning process

3. Incorporate parking management, transportation demand management
strategies in ongoing area programs

F. Affordability & Equity
1. 25-35% affordable housing on BART property*

2. Implement BART’s Project Stabilization Policy and set small business goal for
design and construction of TOD

* Pending vision established in Specific Plan and Infrastructure Master Plan
BART Planning, Development & Construction 12





Proposed Motion:

The General Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to
execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Concord
to include the North Concord/Martinez BART station within the

Concord Reuse Project Specific Plan and Infrastructure Master
Plan.

BART Planning, Development & Construction 13






—— T e

BART to Livermore August 10, 2017

Project Update






BART to Livermore DEIR

* Released July 31, 2017
 ,5-day comment period closes September 14

* Provide comments
 Email: barttolivermore@bart.gov
 Web: www.bart.gov/livermore

* Mail: BART to Livermore Extension Project

300 Lakeside Drive, 215 Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

* Two public meetings:

* August 22, 6-gpm: Livermore
e August 29, 6-gpm: Dublin






BART to Livermore Project Goals

* Provide affordable and effective inter-regional and
intermodal link

* Link existing BART, inter-regional rail, Priority
Development Areas (Isabel, downtown, East Side)

* Create TOD opportunities
* Provide alternative to I-580 congestion

* Improve air quality, reduce greenhouse gases (GHG)






BART to Livermore Recent History

e 2008-2010
* Apr 2010

e Jul 2010

e Jul 2011

e Feb 2012

* Aug 2012
* Feb 2014

* Nov 2014

e Feb 2016

Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR)

City of Livermore recommends downtown alignment

Board certifies Program EIR and adopts downtown
alignment

City of Livermore adopts freeway alignment

Board direction to advance BART to Livermore (Isabel)
10% preliminary engineering and environmental review

Notice of Preparation (NOP) for Project EIR

Board discussion of alternatives to include
Alameda County Measure BB

I-580 Express Lanes project completed






Alt 1 Conventional BART to Isabel

Storage and Maintenance Facility

pY

mmmm Fxisting BART Line === ACE Tracks

0 N
Q, yoan Rd =
% § e :
s . i cﬁj? f_ag fj;osffas o = %’
2 ollege 5
£ oG 8 0, e 8 i & © 3 ) E 3
2 5 5 . S x 5 T et z 5
b= E o = ) = = o u — =
: B . 2§ : 0 = -
: LT Ll |
DublinBkd 4
““l“lt-ﬁ "“Illlll‘ ..!ll|nnnnln..““““"“.. Jovrk ". E
o g Tam eegrmans® = WY - -
.".‘ , a Cen {\9?‘& & ’% ) ‘i‘ J
T
g @—0 s o ez —" T % »
B, % : O Do pvia ACE%
0% 2 g el Alway Bivd - S@ N g, o) Vasco Road & H
" X Dr ) ] o, Py LT -
asg . NF A% Livermore Municipa! Pro OSEd 7 A o | REREAREEEREEEEF
3% Dublin/Pleasanton & % onlon = P g < :
%ot : = ] Isabel Station = -
Storerdoe Mal BART Station B 3 5 T
a— e ) N awrence
'ﬁﬁsﬁwd < < 3 g: . ACEQapuvenns % i Livermore
;] e = 2= Livermore ® i _
680 o % 6‘%\ 3 Lm ™ O 8 National
:g‘ o"?—" -g o S e '.0.. EastAve s 5 paaigen
£ D-)p o o LLLDEUTLE DT T TTTT LD PITFTT DT P s
- G & staniey Bivd " 4
%v J&,b,l? /P@% Sandia
Z - 3 National
73. ‘FP@ Labaratory
ACE Vineyard Ave Téela R
Pleasanton ) .
N Proposed BART Line wmmmmi Proposed Bus Lines
@ 0 05 1 2Miles






Alt 2 Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) or
Electric Multiple Unit (EMU)

mmmm EXisting BART Line

w=f= ACE Tracks

@
< =
3 e Rd - i
% 2 E =
g 5 o S okeas = e 8
- § g S0, o E £ 3 E Z - 2
I h =S . g m
5 s 2 i EN § P ! <— Storage and Maintenance Facility -
8 <L % = (_% 8 a#ll“-“i =
DublinBRkd g
.“’".'lllll...h “‘IIIIIIIE . :llllllllllllIl.ll.lllllllll.......'..l‘.“‘-! ?K\N\J .5.." ‘.‘.‘
a** Geny e ’4" A v %
_/@7——0 2 PR .y LU % ]
o, % 3 '::-..;:'ini'i'l'im“ ACES,
% % % ; ““"02"’4 Alrway Bivd - Vasco Road & s
N Dr & : - oy (=] o LTI T ]
ll‘ . N2 o i M i G . " EBEE
L Dublin/Pleasanton & "f;f.ggggg&f —_— PI;'OE:SEd e s 3
S° ! Isabel Station ™= o8
5 fonerﬁ e Mall AENENTEINNNNNENNENNay '5 Cm
g BART Statlgp S ) G>Jll m- AcES L 2 §E Law rence
680 oot ) o z S8 Livermore - %, 3R | [—flpman
V2% o N % % at ) o National
% O’P @ g o T ..0.‘ Eastfwe e apnidear)
A o L/ . llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllnlllll[ﬂ
< T 2 staniey BV whs e
g }b{*‘?-‘ f”@% Sandia
A fed e MNational
A T Laborafory
Vineyard Ave
Tesla Rd
ACE
Pleasanton ) ]
N Proposed DMU Line w=msmmn Proposed Bus Lines
@ 0 a5 1 2Miles






Alt 3 Express Bus/
Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

o N &
' ] o
> BusTransfer = ©s, =
5 Platform = k:
= -
DublinBlvd
tl-i‘“‘“‘“."*— - ’t‘“““ :.'...'.'.'l...u'.llnlll\:llllll'.l.........‘
{ T—=C
_'-'/ b
2" Q‘%,,
- ‘90
Saxy ‘ . /, : QBDr
L Dublin/Pleasanton &
" ol 8]
Sforfergge Malf BART Statlon -
e msg,w %;
630 o 5
s "6’5
= %y, &
2 T
5, %
2
ACE
Pleasanton
N
@ 0 05 1 2Miles

S
%
’D‘O

®

Vineyard Ave

qr
=
<[ » e
@ Laughlin -
: Parking Lot -
- = g N
e - 3
= o =
- - '3
a ¥ ,9”‘ !‘.
5‘?‘{} % g
% -y
..... 50 .
=
Aitway Blvd . -
A. p Of?of =8 SEEFEEE 5
Livarmaore Municinal Irway ¥ "0 ‘?*‘i‘;,@ Q\*é\ I‘ e
. |
oy L Aiport Park and Rlde "*---. =
| ]] .llll.llllll.......r"" E
© ACE“nlllll. 2 g tawrence
% Livermore - %, E J;fﬁﬂf
¥ 5
s %, o - Lataraton
o
- et %‘llll.l.IIlllllﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁvlellllllllll.llllllllllll?lu
gantey B G W Sendl
e, andia
’750% Nationai
T Laboratory
Tesla Rd

mmmm Express Bus/BRT Facilities

mmmm Existing BART Line/Facilities

smmnm Proposed Bus Lines

of=f= ACE Tracks






Alt 3 Express Bus/BRT at
Dublin/Pleasanton Station

Eastbound [-580 Westbound 1-580

&
= = 2 == £ it [ = = = S S
= ; | a L—J=] =—=] ) = I—— — - z ] — —_—

Express Bus Cross-section

Above shows cross-section at the station






Alt 4 Enhanced Bus

2
<L o
g"; r\g&““an it é DEi
5 =
= . & O Las Positas 2 - %
o O 2 A S Colfege - 0% -
E o Ckas, - 5 3 = o 2 = 5
5 2 nbr s & - B i
= X o =2 = 5 B .0‘ ‘hl I
= & A B 2 f= = -] -
= m o- = - i
B ] DublinBlvd N - & * a
oLl o L N TP =] oy ] & o s
.;i““‘ frm—, o Ty euiv ..g llllIlllllIlln."“...."l i. ;" Sy .o'f‘\“‘l ¥ k... : o ““‘ "c-‘ 95?05@
-4 =uan = 5 5\
[ ] | { ]
% @_ﬂ C L H o e T ‘“I. L I““““lmllIllnlnlnlnllnnI' : “““ll'l“ill‘““““""“'““ ‘6
: §‘“% Q;@ .. SURENgg, SRR UERY
-;5 .:‘ qgo "y 0&.’:1./ Alrway Bhvd ,q,%
Tanst % Dr o : . Airwa (e
- : oF % Liverrrrore Mumicipal y Wy, T4 ]
T % Dublin/Pleasanton & .’Q‘ggndﬁc e Park and Ride 0y & :
s 50 v uy =
Storeridge Mall BART Station ? e e 3 77T
A 5'6\"' S © - ACFSuwansnmg, 2 é L;:?w rence
680 3 g S = Livermore 2 = varmors
2% . &8 *“,p i National
o 5 o Laboratory
& - 0‘llllIIIIllllllﬁii“ﬂHﬁlllllllllllllllllllllll —
g % %,
? fbj? N Sandia
= - Qs National
*g /2 Laboratory
Vineyard Ave
Tesla Rd
ACE
Pleasanton

mmmm EXisting BART Line/Facilites  ==msms Proposed Bus Lines
@ 0 05 1 2Miles I I ACE Tracks






Future
Isabel
Station

North
Station Area

Proposed Track Alignment

4

| oo PEDESTRIAN OVERCROSSING

BART

=-580West—— — 3
-580 East %//////////y////?//,;/}////////////_ '

4

4
i
PEDESTRIAN CVERCROSSING 4

TAX WAITING

BUS LOADING/UNLOADING

PARKING STRUCTURE

South Station Area

Legend
] Accessroad and pedestrian plaza,

included in project
——-——  Bike Lane/Service Road
------ Pedestrian Circulation N

120° o 120 1o . = Part of Isabel Neighborhood Plan,
R —— not included in project.

10





sabel Neighborhood Plan

o

1: ! 1
L Y BLYID

Livermore Municipal Airport

Land Use Diagram -
Change Areas

Residential
|:| Transition
[ ] village
- Center
- Core
Hon-Residential
Ground Floor Retail/Flex Space
B 'cichborhood Commercial

- izeneral Commercial
- Office Care

[ office

|:| Business Park
:l Educational/Institutional
[ open space

- Farking

ﬁ' Mew Neighborhood Park/Plaza

Circulation
I B B BART Extension
[ Existimg Street

---------- Proposed Street
Sooososs Signature Streetscape
———— BART Pedestrian Bridge
e |Urban Growith Boundary

memmms Flanning Arsa






Isabel Station






re
ructu

| Parking St

Isabe

-,
=

i

a
By
+
-
-






Parking Spaces

West Dublin/Pleasanton 1,100 1,100 1,100 1,100
Dublin/Pleasanton 2,900 2,900 2,900 2,900
Isabel 150 3,400 2,400 150
Laughlin/Greenville 0 0 0 230

14





BART Yard and Shop Location

Store 172 BART cars

\

Proposed
Livermore Municipad Isabel Station
Arport

15





DMU/EMU Yard and Shop Location

L as PosilasStore 12 DMU/EMU cars

3

\

Proposed
Livermone Aduncinal Isabel Station
Arport

16





BART Yard and Shop

R

s ud
h
e g ol = = T e ——
= . - N P #
{ ] :.I /-i//.-'/, i
& ~

1
'\-\.\
|
o
5
-
.-
¥
%

e
~
- —_—
il
# T i .
e S = ey - ;
g ey ;
: _— - g
—-—.'_1.—_.',-__:_ — S a
S
-
|
-

SRR E
-u"'-"-"‘;ﬂr'\-n...._-uq... ki
- T i o






DMU/EMU at Dublin Pleasanton
Station

18






I-580 Right-of-Way Widening

Location Conv DMU/ | Express

BART EMU | Bus/BRT
Dublin/Pleasanton Station None ~32 ft ~88 ft
Between Dublin/Pleasanton and Isabel | ~46 ft ~46 ft None
Isabel Station ~67 ft ~67 ft None

Enhanced Bus does not require I-580 widening

19





Summary Right-of-Way Needs

Number of parcels affected

Permanent acreage affected

Enhanced Bus does not have right-of-way needs

BART

117

147

DMU/EMU

137

102

Express
Bus/BRT

34

10

20





Summary of Property Effects

Core | owa T oores
Strips of landscaping Yes Yes Yes
Parking from auto dealers (# dealers) 0 3 2
Parking from other retail businesses 1 3 0
Parking from City of DuinnICorp Yard/ NG Vec Vec
Alameda County Fire
Commercial buildings displaced 1 1 0
Residential parcels displaced 2 0 0

21





2040 Increase in BART Systemwide
Boardings

12,000
11,900 Additional Systemwide Boardings

10,000 /

8,000

6,000 11,900

4,000

7,000
2,000 3,500
o 400
BART Alternative DMU/EMU Alternative  Express Bus/BRT Enhanced Bus
Alternative Alternative

22





FY2014-15 Average Weekday Boardings + Exits

PIODUOT ULION
AB|BA OJ15ED
BpULIC
pleMARH LANOS
25 NS5
LN A58 AN
ounJg ues

a1 RARIET
PSR
BLU|OD

A1 uoun
Aa|aylag UlloN
ELE|d 04
plemABRH
Aqusy

Ju10 4Aegfs1ald
oJpUEsT LES
JlejAeg
plooUOT
abplixpoy
SEIG|INA

ABO AISBAN
}@RID INU|E AN
IlH AUESES|4
04S

Hllza a3e]
sea|dfuligng
A4 UB|D
LLNBS||07
[94eS|
3BALINI
oLl
SOy [9L] 2
ANYHIE A
Ao AlRQ

B0 1S Yibt
e d BOQ|EH

| UOISSIA 35 LAST
UOISSI|A 1S LaYre
RO IS YITT
Az|ayJeg
133Us 3 311D

[@MOd
AdaLuo baLio|y
oJapeEdJEqLUT

o™
N

!

l”JJJJJJJJJ_[UJJ_LLLLLI TIRTTETT

Isabel
,200 in 2040

i

Isabel Versus Other BART Stations

90,000

80,000 -
70,000 -
60,000 -
50,000 -
40,000
30,000






Project Cost Elements

Conventional

Express Bus/

Element BART DMU/EMU BRT
Highway widening Yes Yes Yes
Right-of-way Yes Yes Yes
Storage tracks Yes Yes Modest
Maintenance facility 25% Yes Use existing

Vehicles

Enough to operate service and carry expected load

24





Capital Cost of LVX Alternatives (YOE$)

Millions of YOE $

1,800
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200

O

$1,635 $1,600 $i70
-
Conventional DMU Express

BART* Bus/BRT
*Conventional BART includes 25% of a BART shop

$25

Enhanced
Bus

W Escalation

B Pgm Reserve

B Contingency
Prof Services

m Vehicles

® Right-of-Way

B Construction

25





Comparison with LVX Program EIR

Conventional BART Alternative

EIR Year s CZ‘:E:::,;“
Program EIR 2016 $ $1.26B
Project EIR 2016 $ $1.33B
Project EIR YOE ¢ $1.63B

26





Comparison with eBART

LVX DMU

Cost Element Alternative eBART Notes
LVX includes highway widening;
long track to yard; larger shop
Right-of-Way* $163M $13M LVX includes highway widening
Vehicles* $187M $67M LVX includes 24 BART cars
Prof Services* $264M $92M
Pgm Reserve $118M $10M
TOTAL, 2016 % $1,300M $497M

* Including contingency for LVX

27





Capital Cost Vs. Ridership

Millions of YOE $

1,800
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200

O

11,900
7,000 7,000

Conventional DMU

12,000

10,500 *:

9,000

/7,500
6,000

4,500

3,500

3,000

400 11500

Express Enhanced

BART* Bus/BRT Bus

*Conventional BART includes 25% of a BART shop

Increase in BART Systemwide Boardings (2040)

28





BART to Livermore Project Funding

* $533 million total committed design & construction funding
* $398 million Alameda County Measure BB
e $80 million  ABa171 (bridge tolls)
e 315 million RMa (bridge tolls)

* $40 million Livermore Traffic Impact Fees

29





Annual O&M Cost (2040)

2

° $22.8

20

© $16.8 $16.6
:
s 15
o
- M Bus
2 1
= M Rail
=

5

$1.7
. L
Conventional DMU EMU Express  Enhanced Bus

BART* Bus/BRT
*Conventional BART includes 25% of a BART shop

30






Comparison with LVX Program EIR

Conventional BART Alternative

EIR Year $ Annual O&M
Estimate
Program EIR 2016 $ $23M
Project EIR 2016 $ $23M

31





Annual O&M Cost Vs. Ridership

25 13,000
11,900
20 10,400
i
O
2
8 15 7,800
o
n
c
o
= 10 5,200
= 3,500
5 2,600
400
. J -
Conventional DMU EMU Express  Enhanced Bus
BART* Bus/BRT

*Conventional BART includes 25% of a BART shop

Increase in BART Systemwide Boardings (2040)

32






Selected Unavoidable Impacts

Significant increase in intersection delay (2040)

Intersections

Intersections

Intersection

Express | Enhanced
Impact Conv BART | DMU/ EMU Bus/BRT Bus
Increase I-580 traffic east of Isabel Ave (2040) 2-4,% 2-6% - -
2 2 1 1

Intersection

Loss of Isabel South Prime & Unique Farmland 12 acres 12 acres - -

Loss of grassland for shop & yard & approach 104 acres 56 acres - -

Shop & yard reduces visual quality Yes Yes - -

Glare from shop & yard lighting Yes Yes - -

I-580 landscaping redL.Jction reduces visual Ves Ves Ves ]
quality

Isabel parking structure blocks views Yes Yes - -

Airway Blvd soundwall reduces visual quality Yes Yes - -

Increase in energy usage

Yes

33






BART to Livermore Next Steps

e CEQA
 Complete the EIR process before adopting a project

* Project Adoption

* |dentify and adopt a preferred alternative

* |sabel Neighborhood Plan Adoption

* BART policy requires City of Livermore to adopt a Ridership
Development Plan

34





BART to Livermore Next Steps

4>
DEI.R Comment Develop FEIR
Period (45 days) e Review comments
. |* BART Board SVIEWLO L Board
CEQA: b —> + Interagency coordination —
briefing . certification
. 5 oublic e Revise analyses
a8  Develop document
hearings

Evaluation of Alternatives
e Stakeholder meetings Board

* Policymaker meetings adoption
e Public meetings

Project
Adoption:

B s





Tentative Schedule

Isabel
Neighborhood Plan BART to Livermore

Summer 2017 Release DEIR
Fall 2017 Release Draft Plan, DEIR
Winter 2017/28 Release FEIR, Adopt Plan

Spring 2018 Release FEIR, Adopt Project
2019 Release DEIS
2020 Release FEIS
2022 Complete Design
2026 Complete Construction

B e





		BART to Livermore�Project Update

		BART to Livermore DEIR

		BART to Livermore Project Goals

		BART to Livermore Recent History

		Alt 1  Conventional BART to Isabel

		Alt 2	Diesel Multiple Unit (DMU) or Electric Multiple Unit (EMU)

		Alt 3	Express Bus/�Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

		Alt 3	Express Bus/BRT at�Dublin/Pleasanton Station

		Alt 4  Enhanced Bus

		Future�Isabel�Station

		 Isabel Neighborhood Plan

		I-580 Heading West – Existing

		East Airway Blvd – Existing

		Parking Spaces

		BART Yard and Shop Location

		DMU/EMU Yard and Shop Location

		Livermore Ave & Hartman Rd – Existing

		DMU/EMU at Dublin Pleasanton Station

		I-580 Right-of-Way Widening

		Summary Right-of-Way Needs

		Summary of Property Effects

		2040 Increase in BART Systemwide Boardings

		Isabel Versus Other BART Stations

		Project Cost Elements

		Capital Cost of LVX Alternatives (YOE$)

		Comparison with LVX Program EIR

		Comparison with eBART

		Capital Cost Vs. Ridership

		BART to Livermore Project Funding

		Annual O&M Cost (2040)

		Comparison with LVX Program EIR

		Annual O&M Cost Vs. Ridership

		Selected Unavoidable Impacts

		BART to Livermore Next Steps

		BART to Livermore Next Steps

		Tentative Schedule




E REGIONAL MEASURE 3

s J _— - \\ Py
- g - . - .- ; !
R [ - —— !
— ’;",’.7—;-':':t:”_i—wt T | e 3 R y
B, —— = a y I~ ! —- . = b n s
e i — ] 1
st L ] T e 3
S — o 12:31:4: R ; -—
e ol L A P A Mg ar '
< - TR e v § \ - -
" 375 . bl s L) \.-' .
- i

et
et

BART Board of Directors
August 10, 2017





h' s RM3 STATUS UPDATE

Senate Bill 595 (Beall) passed Assembly Transportation Committee on July 14 with an expenditure plan
totaling $5.0 billion (assuming a S3 toll).

The expenditure plan includes project names and amounts, but no project details or policy considerations.
Recent polling shows support for a $3 toll (56%); support rises with S2 toll (59%).

The current expenditure plan allocates S60 million/year for an operating program which includes funding
for the Transbay Terminal, ferries and regional express bus.

A regional capital program is currently allocated to receive 46% of the remaining funding, or $1,930
million; a corridor-based capital program is allocated to receive 54%, or $2,270 million.

SB 595 currently requires the creation of an independent oversight committee, composed of two
representatives from each county, appointed by the board of supervisors, to ensure that any toll revenues
generated are expended consistent with the requirements.

SB 595 also states the intent to create a transportation inspector general to conduct audits and
investigations of activities involving any toll revenues generated by the measure.

Subsequent amendments adding project descriptions, project sponsors, as well as policy provisions are
expected prior to the bill’s vote in the Assembly Appropriations Committee in late August.





BART’S CANDIDATE PROJECT LIST

* Funding in a pool category, not exclusive to BART.

Proposed PROJECT RM 3 Request | 529
Priority (Aug 10, 2017)
1 306 additional train cars $1.0 billion | $500 million
2 Core Capacity $250 million [$140 million*
Train Control Modernization Project
Add'l Traction Power
3 Berkeley Hills Tunnel Design S 90 million
4 Transit Operations Facility Modernization S 25 million
5 EMB/Mont. Capacity Enhancements $120 million
Plat Screen Doors (EM, Mont, Pow)
Add'l elevators, escalators, stairs
6 Safe Routes to Transit S 25 million |$150 million*
7 Second Transit Bay Crossing $200 million | $50 million
8 Seismic Operability Upgrades S 80 million
9 BART Metro S 95 million
$1.885 billion






tn RM3 REGIONAL CAPITAL PROGRAM

Bridge Rehabilitation Top Priority of Indexing
BART Expansion Cars (all BART-reliant counties) S500 million
Corridor Express Lanes $300 million
Goods Movement and Mitigation $125 million

Bay Trail/Safe Routes to Transit (all bridge corridors)  $150 million

Ferries (new vessels) $325 million
BART to Silicon Valley, Phase 2 S400 million
SMART (to Windsor) S 40 million
Capitol Corridor Connection S 90 million
Subtotal $1,930 million





‘ool RM3 CORRIDOR-BASED CAPITAL

CENTRAL CORRIDOR:
Caltrain Downtown Extension (Transbay Terminal, Phase 3)
MUNI Expansion Vehicles
Core Capacity Transit Improvements/Bay Bridge corridor
AC Transit — Rapid Bus Improvements
New Transbay BART Tube and Approaches
Subtotal

SOUTH CORRIDOR:
Tri-Valley Transit Access Improvements
Eastridge to BART Regional Connector
San Jose Diridon Station
Dumbarton Rail/ACE/BART/Shinn Station
San Mateo 101/92 Interchange
Subtotal

S350 million
$140 million
$140 million
S 50 million
S 50 million

S730 million

S100 million
S$130 million
$120 million
S$130 million
S 50 million

S530 million

5





‘ool RM3 CORRIDOR-BASED CAPITAL

NORTH CORRIDOR:

Contra Costa 680/4 Interchange Improvements/Transit $150 million
Marin-Sonoma Narrows S$125 million
Solano 1-80/680/SR12 Interchange Improvements $175 million
Solano West-bound 1-80 Truck Scales S$125 million
Highway 37 Corridor Access Improvements from Hwy 101

to I-80 and Sea Level Rise Adaptation S$150 million
San Rafael Transit Center/SMART S 30 million
Marin 101/580 Interchange $135 million
North Bay Transit Improvements (Contra Costa, Marin,

Napa, Solano, Sonoma) $100 million
SR 29 (South Napa County) S 20 million

Subtotal $1,010 million





m MTC’s PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

MTC met on July 26 to review the proposed expenditure plan and seek position of
“support and seek amendments” to SB 595. MTC offered seven amendments:

1. FasTrak discount. Users receive discount to reduce delays at toll plazas.
2. Use of Toll Revenues. Specify any funds are eligible for bridge rehab/maintenance.
3. Election Date. Delete reference to November 2018 to provide flexibility.

4. Enable a Back-up Plan. Allow MTC to reassign unused revenues within same bridge
corridor (similar to RM2).

5. Clipper 2.0 Funding. Provide funding for Clipper 2.0.

6. Additional Project Capacity. In allocating add’l $200 million, priority should be given to
bridge corridors where proposed investment levels are low on a per toll payer basis.

7. Pro Rata Expenditure Plan Adjustment. Allow a pro rata adjustment to the expenditure
plan if MTC decides on a $1 or $2 toll in ballot measure.





ool ACTCand CCTA ACTIONS

Contra Costa and Alameda county and city reps on MTC voiced concerns that
the proposed level of RM3 investment was not reflective of the tolls paid by
their residents. All present voted against MTC’s proposal which passed 8-5.

Both CCTA and ACTC have adopted revised expenditure plans advocating for
additional funding for their counties.

CCTA advocated for $371 million additional funding: BART cars (+5$500 mil), Bay
Trail/Safe Routes to Transit (+5$50 mil), increase for ferries, operational
improvements on SR4, East County Intermodal Transit Station (+$50 mil) and
other highway/interchange improvements. Suggested providing zero funding to
BART to Silicon Valley, SMART, Caltrain and other south and north county
projects.

ACTC added funding for AC Transit (+S50 mil) and specified that Core Capacity
Transit Improvements were for AC Transit Transbay projects; added $35 mil for
goods movement, and added two highway projects (+5135 mil).





NEXT STEPS

= August 21

= Sept 1

= Sept 15

= Oct 15

Legislature back in session

SB 595 must pass Assembly Appropriations
Committee

Last day for SB 595 to pass both houses

Last day for Governor to sign or veto bills





		REGIONAL MEASURE 3

		RM3 STATUS UPDATE

		BART’S CANDIDATE PROJECT LIST

		RM3 REGIONAL CAPITAL PROGRAM

		RM3 CORRIDOR-BASED CAPITAL

		RM3 CORRIDOR-BASED CAPITAL

		MTC’s PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

		ACTC and CCTA ACTIONS

		NEXT STEPS




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: July 14, 2017
FROM: Independent Police Auditor
SUBJECT: BART Citizen Oversight Model Evaluation

Pursuant to Chapter 3-01 of the BART Citizen Oversight Model (Model), the Board of Directors, with input
from the BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB), Independent Police Auditor (IPA), BART Police
Associations (BPOA and BPMA), complainants, and the public will evaluate the BART Police citizen
oversight structure after the first year of implementation to determine if the need exists to make changes
and/or otherwise make adjustments to the system to improve its continued performance. Chapter 3-01
further provides that this evaluation shall in no way be intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen
oversight structure.

In order to facilitate the review and evaluation required by the Model, and after significant research and
extensive discussion, OIPA engaged the OIR Group, a law enforcement consulting organization led by
veteran former federal civil rights prosecutor Michael Gennaco, and featuring a number of the nation's most
experienced police practices and oversight professionals. OIR Group has been at the forefront of the
national effort to create meaningful civilian oversight for over a decade, and has designed and assisted
oversight entities to ensure effective monitoring and accountability mechanisms.

The thorough review undertaken by OIR expanded the list of required stakeholders and participants. Local
interviews were primarily conducted by Aaron Zisser, who has worked as a consultant on reform and
oversight in the criminal justice system, either conducting reviews on behalf of oversight and monitoring
agencies or advising client-agencies on improving their corrections or police oversight functions. Mr. Zisser
worked as an attorney with the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), Civil Rights Division where he led
numerous complex system-reform investigations and compliance monitoring. Mr. Zisser's recent clients
have included large local and state agencies that conduct oversight or systems-reform investigations.

The evaluation commenced in January 2017 and a final report has now been generated and submitted. The
item will be on the agenda for discussion at the July 18, 2017 Operations, Safety and Workforce Standing
Committee meeting with an expectation that it will also be added to the agenda for the Board of Directors
meeting scheduled for August 10, 2017. Mr. Zisser is expected to attend both meetings to answer any
questions about the methodology, findings, and recommendations.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (510) 874-7477.
N

i/\!’\/\u (i

¥ Russell G. Bloom





Independent Review of the BART Police Oversight
Structure

June 2017

O

GROUP

Michael J. Gennaco
323 821 0386
7142 Trask Avenue
Playa del Rey. CA 90293

OIRGroup.com

Aaron B. Zisser
628 400 1203
Oakland, CA
civilrightsconsulting.com





TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.  EXECULIVE SUMIMATY ceeviireiiiniinieiseenssnessstsssssssnessasssesssassssssssssssssssssessssssssassssnssssssssssssassssssssses 3

I, IDErOQUCHION. . ccceererrenssnrsassssssssssssissassssssasssassassnssnsessensaesssssssssssssssssssssssnasssnssnsssassasssnssssssasssses 6
A, BaCKEIOUNd. .cviieverirenennneenneneestssesetssssisssssiasssssassemiasssssaessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssasssasssssastassanss 6
B. Scope and Methodology...cuieiiienmsrsennsrsssmssisisisssssssssensssssnasmsssasssassssssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssses 7
C.  ACKNOWICAZEMENTS cuvuecerrircniiicreriiseserissssssssessssssssssssissstsssssstsnssssssasssassssssasssassssssssssasssesssssssssenassans 9

ITI. Findings and Recommendations... .. eeeeereessescsssisssssssnsssssssssmsissssissssissssssimssssssssssssssssens 11
A.  Clarifying Oversight’s SCOPE .c.cocimeiieneissssisissstsistsssssssssss s st sas e sassssssssssssssssass 11
B. Increasing OIPA’s Monitoring Responsibilities.....ciinnninmeeecccestiacniennns 12
C. Making the Complaint Process Available t0 All ..ot 14
D. Enhancing OTPA INVEStIZAtIONS ceereeerirerisesseissrisesisisiesisisisssisinssssessssisssssesssssassssssssssssssasssnsasas 14
E. Improving the Disposition Process of OIPA Tnvestigations ....c.coviieennenneennnsiscscsnsnsscncacs 18
F. Additional Risk Management Role for OIPA. ... iiiiiininininnninisissssnessnssaesnne 23
G. Developing a Mediation Program.. i 24
H. Ensuring Prompt OIPA Notification of All Critical INCIAeNTS w..uvueeeeccrenienccneniniisereeninnees 25
I. Enhancing OIPA’s Footprint Regarding Use of FOrce..... e, 25
J.  Mapping Out a Significant Role for the Auditor in BART PD’s Early Identification System

26

K. Increasing OIPA’s Role a8 AUdItOr ..civieineninisisnisisisisisniissisassssssisssisasssssesssnisssssssnens 27
L. Expanding OIPA’s Role in Policy Development ...t 28
M. Ensuring Integration of Oversight in BART PD’s Policies and Practices.....ccovccnieunccnnnnes 29
N. Clarifying the Relationship Between OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board....30
O. Clarifying and Enhancing the Roles of the BART Police Citizen Review Board .................. 31
P. Providing Increased Transparency Authority for BART Oversight .....ociiisiinicniinnnnns 34
Q. Ensuring Periodic Review of BART OVersight...iiiiiiciiniciiiisicssnisenicnsninens 34





I. Executive Summary

Overview of the review: Chapter 3-01 of the BART oversight model (hereinafter the
“Model”) provides as follows:

The Board of Directors, with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
Auditor, BART Police Associations, complainants and the public, will evaluate
the BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation
to determine if the need exists to make changes and or otherwise make
adjustments to the system to improve its continued performance. This evaluation
shall in no way be intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen oversight
structure.'

This review and report were commissioned and conducted in furtherance of BART’s compliance
with this provision of the Model; that is, to facilitate the Board of Directors’ evaluation of the
oversight structure.

Our review began in January 2017. We interviewed the stakeholders whose input is expressly
set out in the Model, but we conducted many additional interviews with a broad range of other
significant parties. We ensured that the evaluation takes account of the original impetus for the
establishment of the oversight system — the January 1, 2009, shooting of Oscar Grant by a BART
Police Department (BART PD) officer — as well as the subsequent systemic reviews of policies
and practices. Because oversight’s effectiveness depends heavily on the community’s trust,
engagement, and support, we placed a high premium on community attitudes and concerns
regarding the oversight system. We measured these factors in a variety of ways.

During our review, all individuals we met were generous with their time, accessibility, and
candor. Representatives of the Board of Directors, the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and
the BART PD were particularly helpful in providing both relevant documents and important
insights regarding the issues discussed herein. The Office of the Independent Police Auditor
(OIPA) was especially helpful in facilitating the mechanics of our work, and was continually
available to provide documents and important perspective. To the degree that our findings and
recommendations may help enhance the current civilian oversight system, it reflects the
cooperation, assistance, and acumen provided by these stakeholders.

The oversight system: The BART PD oversight system, established in July 2010 following a
process that involved community input, consists of the OIPA and the BART Police Citizen
Review Board. According to the Model, OIPA (with a current staffing level of three) is to
conduct investigations of complaints alleging serious officer misconduct, make
recommendations on BART PD policies and practices, audit Internal Affairs (IA) investigations,
conduct close monitoring of officer-involved shootings, conduct community outreach, issue

' The Oversight Model is available on the website of the Office of the Independent Police
Auditor: https://www.bart.gov/about/policeauditor and attached to this report as Attachment A.






public reports on investigation outcomes and trends, and provide staffing and other resources to
the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

The BART Police Citizen Review Board consists of 11 members. Each of the nine Directors
selects one member, while one is appointed by the police associations, and one is “at-large.”
According to the Model, the Review Board is to hold monthly public meetings, review OIPA’s
investigations, review BART PD and OIPA recommendations regarding BART PD policies,
make its own recommendations regarding BART PD policies, conduct community outreach, and
issue reports on its activities. Its members are also authorized under the Model to participate in
officer and executive hiring.

Overview of findings: We found that the Model devised in response to the tragic shooting of
Oscar Grant created two oversight entities that have served a valuable purpose in establishing
effective civilian oversight over an agency that had no such previous external influences. The
fact that we offer numerous recommendations designed to strengthen and clarify the original
Model should in no way diminish the work of those who have worked diligently to fulfill the
overarching objectives of accountability, advancing progressive police practices, and fostering
greater community trust in law enforcement. Instead, this Report seeks to fulfill a key part of the
Model’s original vision: one that recognized that a constructive re-assessment of BART s
nascent oversight program should be built into the design.

From that starting point, we found several areas in which the Model could benefit from revision
and reform. These include significant omissions in the Model relating to investigations and
auditing authority, and the ambiguities in provisions relating to outreach, reporting,
investigations, and policy recommendations.

The review features a total of fifty-three recommendations. They range in scope from broad
issues of jurisdiction and structure to more particular or technical adjustments to specific
provisions in the Model. Among the key categories that produced specific suggestions for
reform are the following:

Recommendations to expand authority and related findings: We recommend expanding the
oversight system’s authority in two areas:

¢ Broader audit authority: First, we recommend expanding the auditing authority to
allow OIPA to review any operational aspect of BART PD — as opposed to merely
reviewing IA’s operations.

e Investigations absent a complaint: Second, we recommend authorizing OIPA to
conduct its own independent investigation or review into any use of force or potential act
of misconduct without the need to await receipt of a qualifying citizen complaint.

Other recommendations and findings:

e Independence from each other’s roles and responsibilities should be reinforced through
structural changes to OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board for the sake of
their respective and mutual effectiveness. OIPA’s obligations relating to staffing the





Review Board should be removed, the requirement of a Review Board performance
evaluation of the IPA should be eliminated, and orientation and training for Review
Board members should be enhanced to delineate roles and responsibilities.

Case Auditing should be conducted in a more consistent and thorough manner that
allows for not only pre-completion input into the IA investigation, but also the ability to
influence dispositions and discipline prior to BART PD’s final decision.

A Systemic Auditing protocol should be developed and implemented. OIPA should
analyze trends and patterns, and it should be involved in BART PD procedures relating to
use-of-force reviews and early identification of officers who may require remedial
interventions.

Investigations should address a broader range of complaints; any person should be able
to file a complaint; and written protocols should be developed regarding investigative
techniques, procedures, and coordination with other BART components to ensure
confidence in OIPA’s investigations and to ensure that it receives all complaints coming
in to BART.

Use of Force Review should become an arena in which OIPA more regularly
participates, including assessing individual incidents, and contributing to holistic
discussions of tactics and training, and other potential elements of constructive feedback.

Policy, procedure, and practice recommendations should constitute a regular and
formalized element of OIPA’s interactions with and influence on BART PD.

Public reporting by OIPA should be enhanced, in the form of greater detail with regard
to its case monitoring role of internal investigations initiated by BART PD. Similarly,

OIPA should report on the increased activities proposed in this report.

Mediation should continue to be studied for ways to make it more attractive to
complainants and officers.

An oversight system evaluation should be conducted periodically.





I1. Introduction

A. Background.

BART PD: Established in 1969, BART PD is “comprised of 296 personnel, of which 206 are
sworn peace officers,” according to BART PD’s website.> BART PD covers the entire BART
system, which extends into four counties. The Chief of Police reports to the General Manager
(GM), who is appointed by the Board of Directors.

Shooting of Oscar Grant and aftermath: On January 1, 2009, Oscar Grant was fatally shot by
BART police officer Johannes Mehserle on the Fruitvale Station platform. On August 11, 2009,
the law firm Meyers Nave issued a report regarding policies and practices “relevant to the” Oscar
Grant shooling.3

From June 2009 to September 2009. the National Organization of Black Law Enforcement
Executives (NOBLE) conducted a review of BART PD’s policies and practices, and it issued a
report on January 1, 2010, which identified areas for improvement in a number of areas of BART
PD’s operations.! A follow-up audit was conducted in 2013, and BART PD continues to report
on its ongoing efforts to implement the recommended reforms.

In June 2010, Mehserle was convicted of involuntary manslaughter and acquitted of murder and
voluntary manslaughter charges.

BART Public Safety Accountability Act: In September 2009 — immediately following the
Meyers Nave report and before the completion of the NOBLE report — a bill was proposed in the
state legislature to create an independent oversight system for BART PD. In July of 2010, the
BART Public Safety Accountability Act was enacted. It directed the BART Board of Directors
to “establish an office of independent police auditor, reporting directly to the board, to
investigate complaints against district police personnel” and assigned the following “powers and
duties” to the appointed auditor”:

(1) To investigate those complaints or allegations of on-duty misconduct and off-duty
unlawful activity by district police personnel, within the independent police auditor’s
purview as it is set by the board.

? “History of the BART Police Department,” http://m.bart.gov/about/police/employment.

3 Meyers Nave, “Review of BART PD Policies, Practices and Procedures Re: New Year’s Day
2009.,” 1 (Aug. 2009), available at
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/Mevers_Nave_Public_Report.pdf.

Y NOBLE, “BART Management Audit,” (Jan. 2010) [NOBLE Audit (2010)], available at
https://www.bart.cov/sites/default/files/docs/NOBLE Final Report.pdf.

> CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(a) (2016).





(2) To reach independent findings as to the validity of each complaint.

(3) To recommend appropriate disciplinary action against district police personnel for those
complaints determined to be sustained.®

The Act also authorized the Board to create “a citizen review board to participate in
recommending appropriate disciplinary action.”’

Oversight Model: Pursuant to the legislation, the BART Board of Directors formed a committee
to study what type of oversight should be established. There were numerous public hearings
with robust input from members of the community. The Model eventually promulgated called
for an independent police auditor, as well as a citizen review board. Responsibilities of the
oversight system — detailed in this report — included: investigations of complaints alleging
serious officer misconduct, recommendations on BART PD policies and practices, auditing of
Internal Affairs investigations, close monitoring of officer-involved shootings, community
outreach, and issuing public reports on investigation outcomes and trends.

OIPA: The OIPA is appointed by and reports directly to the Board of Directors. OIPA consists
of three staff, including the Independent Police Auditor (IPA), an investigator, and an
administrative support person.

BART Police Citizen Review Board: The Review Board consists of 11 members, including
nine members appointed by the respective Directors, a member appointed by the police
associations, and an at-large member selected through a formal application process.

B. Scope and Methodology
Scope: Chapter 3-01 of the Oversight Model provides as follows:

The Board of Directors, with input from the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
Auditor, BART Police Associations, complainants and the public, will evaluate the
BART Police citizen oversight structure after the first year of implementation to
determine if the need exists to make changes and or otherwise make adjustments to the
system to improve its continued performance. This evaluation shall in no way be
intended to eliminate the BART Police citizen oversight structure.

Even though the Model calls for an evaluation after one year of implementation, no assessment
has ever been conducted since the inception of BART’s civilian oversight. While this lapse was
unfortunate, it is a testament to OIPA and the Board of Directors that this independent review
has now been commissioned.

We sought to answer two basic sets of questions:

¢ CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(b)(1)-(3) (2016).

" CA Pub. Util. Code § 28767.8(c) (2016).





e Does the oversight structure perform as contemplated in the language of the Model? If
not, what ambiguities or omissions in the Model’s language may impact optimum
performance?

e Could the oversight structure be improved or enhanced to further the oversight system’s
goals, as articulated in best practices and understood by the communities it serves?

Overview of methodology: To these ends, we evaluated:
e The language of the Model for ambiguity or weaknesses.

e Whether practice could benefit by providing clearer authority, expansion of duties, and
reconsideration of priorities.

e The perceptions and concerns of communities BART serves and BART system
stakeholders, as well as national best practices, to gauge what changes would help to
instill additional trust in the oversight structure and aid in serving its goals.

Interviews: Our review began in January 2017 and entailed more than 50 interviews with nearly
four dozen stakeholders. These included OIPA staff; BART Police Citizen Review Board
members: seven BART directors; local oversight professionals; local advocacy groups, including
the local ACLU affiliate and the Coalition on Homelessness; police associations; IA officers; and
BART PD command staff.

Community interest and concerns: Just as it was essential that we speak with police officials
and representatives, community feedback — particularly input from impacted communities,
including communities of color — was of critical importance in our review. This is because the
effectiveness of civilian oversight depends heavily on the community’s trust in its independence,
authority. and capacity.

Community members — especially those who have perceived or borne the brunt of systemic
unfairness and an adversarial relationship with law enforcement — are much more likely to
provide information and insight to an oversight entity that they consider fair, meaningful, and
empowered. Those contributions from the community can, in turn, strengthen the legitimacy and
the effectiveness of the oversight entity. And this dynamic can ultimately increase community
trust in the police department, as well — the public is reassured by the sense of accountability and
gives credence to the positive acknowledgements of progress that the oversight entity can
provide. Accordingly, our recommendations draw heavily on what we learned from and about
the communities served by BART.

We assessed community interest through interviews with individual residents as well as political
leaders. leaders of community and advocacy groups. and leaders of other Bay Area oversight
agencies who could speak to broader community sentiment. We also gauged community interest
and concerns through other Bay Area initiatives on oversight. as well as input provided during
the original 2009 process.





Finally, we sought to account for any countervailing concerns. with an eye toward maximizing
the understanding and acceptance of all key stakeholders, including those subject to oversight
and those with contrasting viewpoints on how it should function.

BART Police Citizen Review Board sessions and documentation: We attended three Review
Board sessions and requested and reviewed additional documentation, including:

The Model and earlier drafts of the Model

Review Board bylaws

Complaints and OIPA investigation reports

Notifications provided to officers and complainants

OIPA monitoring reports regarding A investigations

OIPA and Review Board reports

Review Board agendas and minutes

OIPA and Review Board policy recommendations

IPA and Review Board member selection materials

The 2010 NOBLE report, the follow-up 2013 audit, and the 2009 Meyers Nave report
Outreach materials

Public information regarding the process for developing the oversight Model, community
members’ observations of the oversight system, and serious incidents involving BART
PD officers

Best practices and standards: In addition to drawing from our own experience and exposure to
various oversight models and practices, we consulted best practices and standards from a variety
of sources, including the National Association for the Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement
(NACOLE) reports and reports by other professional organizations; scholarly literature on
oversight; the NACOLE code of ethics (cited in the Model); the Core Principles for an Effective
Police Auditor’s Office (cited in the Model); U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division
investigations and consent decrees® and COPS Collaborative Reform Initiative reports’; and the
Final Report of the President’s Task Force on 21* Century Policing (May 2015)."

C. Acknowledgements

We received enormous support throughout the review process from a range of stakeholders and
are grateful to each person who took the time to sit down with us for an interview. We were able
to interview most members of the Board of Directors, who expressed strong interest in the
review. Some helpfully directed us to other stakeholders. BART PD’s executive staff, Internal

¥ The U.S. Department of Justice publishes its findings letters and settlement agreements on its
website: https://www.justice.gov/crt/special-litication-section-cases-and-matters0.

? The U.S. Department of Justice catalogues its COPS assessment reports:
https://cops.usdoj.gov/collaborativereform.

' Final Report of the President’s Task Force on 21 Century Policing (May 2015), available at
https://cops.usdoj.cov/pdf/taskforce/taskforce finalreport.pdf.






Affairs investigators, and the police associations, as well as the OIPA staff were open and candid
and provided invaluable insights.

The current IPA enlisted this review, provided a comprehensive list of potential interviewees,
contacted many of them to help schedule interviews, and was readily available for ongoing
questions. The IPA provided critical OIPA documents and spent many hours sharing his
understanding of and views on the system with us. We applaud his energy and interest and note
that this review likely would not have happened but for his proactivity and creativity. The [PA’s
embracing of this peer review process, and full cooperation with it, is testament to an admirable
growth mindset.

Finally, we are grateful to the family of Oscar Grant, who remain constructively engaged in the
subjects of oversight and accountability, and who took the time in that spirit to share their
experience and suggestions with us.

10





I11.Findings and Recommendations

BART’s current oversight model has many admirable features and has served its transit
community well for almost six years. The Model provides OIPA with access to the most
sensitive of Police Department records and gives it the ability to conduct independent
investigations, audit internal investigations conducted by BART PD, and make policy
recommendations. Moreover, the Model provides the BART Police Citizen Review Board with
an opportunity to meaningfully weigh in on complaint investigations and recommend
disciplinary outcomes, an authority that very few community-based oversight entities possess.

However, the Model has ambiguities and places unnecessary limits on oversight authority. This
is due in large part to requiring the existence of a complaint before authority can be exercised. In
addition, the Model saddles OIPA with administrative functions for the BART Police Citizen
Review Board, blurring the lines between oversight entities with complementary yet distinct and
independent roles. The recommendations set out below — which flow from an evaluation process
expressly contemplated by the original model —are intended to provide clarity regarding both
OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s authority. The recommendations suggest a
course that could result in more impactful oversight for the benefit of the community and BART
PD alike.

A. Clarifying Oversight’s Scope

The Model Should Make Explicit that OIPA’s Oversight Scope Includes All Employees of
BART PD and Any Potential Violations of Policy.

Currently the Model states that OIPA has the authority to exercise its oversight duties with
regard to “any and all law enforcement activities or personnel operating under the authority of”
BART. We have been informed that this passage has been interpreted to include non-sworn
members of BART. However, for purposes of clarity, the Model should indicate that all
employees of BART are within OIPA’s oversight authority.

Many of the non-sworn employees of a police agency have considerable interaction with the
public and are indirectly imbued with the authority of the law enforcement entity for which they
work. Accordingly, those employees often have significant influence on whether the public is
appropriately served by the agency. For that reason, all police department employees should be
subject to civilian oversight’s ambit.

Moreover, at least as to sworn officers, the Model should make clear that any potential violations
of policy should fall within the ambit of OIPA. Law and practice has also recognized that there
is a clear nexus between off-duty conduct and on duty responsibilities for sworn officers. For
that reason, it has been long held that police officers can be held accountable for off-duty
misconduct inconsistent with their duties and responsibility to uphold the law. For example,
officers who are found to have engaged in domestic violence or impaired driving can be
independently sanctioned for that conduct by their employing agencies. In order to ensure
accountability for these actions, progressive oversight entities have recognized that they must

11





similarly be able to exercise oversight over off-duty officer conduct. The Model for OIPA must
ensure that such oversight authority exists over BART PD.

Recommendation One: The Model should be revised to make clear that the scope of OIPA’s
authority extends to non-sworn employees of BART PD and to all potential misconduct
involving sworn officers whether on or off duty.

B. Increasing OIPA’s Monitoring Responsibilities

OIPA Should Consider Revising Its Approach Towards Monitoring Internal Affairs
Investigations Conducted by BART PD Toward Real-Time Monitoring and More
Transparency.

Pursuant to the Model, OIPA has the authority to audit internal affairs investigations conducted
by BART PD to determine if the investigations are “complete, thorough, objective and fair.”
OIPA also has the ability to “require” follow-up investigation into any citizen complaint or
allegation that is handled by BART PD.

OIPA has, in the past, exercised this authority provided by the Model when it determined that a
BART PD investigation did not meet investigative standards. However, we are aware of a recent
instance when there was resistance by BART PD after the Auditor identified an incomplete and
substandard investigation and sought follow-up investigative work. BART PD should be
reminded of the non-discretionary language in the Model requiring it to conduct follow-up
investigation when requested by OIPA. To ensure an effective remedy should there be any
BART PD compliance issues, the Auditor should be able to present any significant lapse to the
attention of the General Manager, the Board of Directors, and the BART Police Citizen Review
Board and set out the incident in its public reporting.

The Model provides the opportunity for OIPA to engage with BART PD as it proceeds with its
internal investigative process. That ability has been enhanced by OIPA’s direct access to IA’s
investigative database. We have been informed that OIPA regularly uses its database access to
audit investigations being conducted by BART PD and has provided input and suggestions such
as identifying additional witnesses to interview. OIPA also provides feedback on completed
investigations to BART pD."

However, to the degree that OIPA provides such auditing of the Department’s internal affairs
investigations, most of the feedback occurs after the case has been completed and a disposition
has already been rendered. At that point, any post hoc input from OIPA has a potentially limited
impact on disposition decisions made by the Police Department since the disposition has already
been determined and subject officers and complainants notified about that decision.

Another approach to auditing of BART PD cases that appears to be workable within the current
Model would be for OIPA to deploy “real-time” monitoring of cases. Under that paradigm,

"' To the degree there remains any uncertainty, OIPA should be provided the authority to
monitor any internal investigations conducted by BART PD, including internally generated
investigations.

12





OIPA would audit active Internal Affairs investigations, serve as a resource during the pendency
of the investigations, and, upon their completion, would review each case for completeness and
objectivity. OIPA would then provide any feedback to Internal Affairs, suggesting any
additional investigation prior to the case being completed. Similarly, prior to BART decision-
makers’ determination as to whether the evidence indicates a violation of policy, OIPA would
offer independent recommendations on investigative outcomes. Finally, on founded cases, OIPA
would present its recommendations with regard to the appropriate level of discipline. While
BART PD would have ultimate authority regarding each of these internal decisions, OIPA’s real
time involvement in these decisions would likely make its input more impactful than the “after
the fact” interaction currently deployed.'?

In addition to providing quality assurance in real time for thorough investigations and evidence-
based determinations on outcomes, OIPA could and should weigh in on other important
investigative decisions. Sometimes, allegations of misconduct implicate potential crimes. The
decision whether to forward such allegations to the District Attorney is one in which OIPA
should participate. Additionally, under this approach, OIPA could play a helpful role in the
proper scoping of investigations.

As importantly, OIPA should document and report on its auditing function. Currently, there is
no detailed report of OIPA’s auditing of BART PD cases, and the data reported regarding
discipline and the outcomes by investigating agency (i.e., OIPA versus IA) is unclear. If OIPA
decides to transition its current auditing function into real-time monitoring, it should
significantly enhance its reporting of this function to the BART Police Citizen Review Board,
the Board of Directors, and the public. OIPA should set out a narrative of each case audited,
whether it found the investigation adequate, any input made by OIPA regarding improving the
investigations, the disposition, and, in founded cases, the discipline imposed. OIPA should also
report on the degree to which it concurred or disagreed with BART PD’s case determinations.
This increased level of transparency would provide stakeholders an important window into the
Police Department’s accountability system and an independent assessment of its vibrancy.'?

Recommendation Two: OIPA should consider modifying its monitoring function of BART PD
internal affairs investigations to “real-time” monitoring, offering recommendations on the
strength of investigations and appropriateness of dispositions prior to BART PD completing
the process.

12 We have been informed that, to the credit of the former Chief, occasionally OIPA had been
asked in real time to provide input regarding investigative or disposition determinations by
BART PD. Our recommendation is for a more comprehensive expansion of this encouraging
dynamic.

1> We leave to OIPA to determine based on its resources what portion of BART PD’s internal
investigations it could monitor in real time. One potential “bright line” suggestion would be to
monitor all internal investigations conducted by the Department’s Internal Affairs unit.

13





Recommendation Three: Should OIPA move to real-time monitoring, it should be involved in
decisions regarding whether a matter should be forwarded to the District Attorney for criminal
review, and the appropriate scoping of an investigation.

Recommendation Four: OIPA should make its reported data on investigations and
recommended discipline clearer and should publicly report its involvement and auditing
functions in detail, setting out its assessment of the quality of each investigation and the
appropriateness of each disposition and disciplinary determination. The Model should be
modified to provide OIPA the express authority to report any resistance by BART PD to
conduct additional investigation to the attention of the Board of Directors, the General
Manager, the BART Police Citizen Review Board, and the public.

C. Making the Complaint Process Available to All

The Model Should Be Revised to Allow Any Person to File a Complaint with OIPA or the
BART Police Citizen Review Board Against Any BART Employee.

Currently, the Model provides for a very limited universe of persons who may file a complaint
with OIPA or the BART Police Citizen Review Board. Only “victims of on-duty police
misconduct, a victim’s parent or guardian or a witness to misconduct” are permitted to file
complaints against “a BART police officer.” The Model’s limitation on who qualifies as a
complainant has led to circumstances in which OIPA has been handcuffed in its ability to
investigate concerning incidents.

In one recent case, a widow of a person who died in custody did not qualify as a “complainant™
under the Model’s definition. And in another case, a concerning use of force incident that
occurred on a train platform, was captured on video, was uploaded on You Tube, and received
thousands of views but did not qualify for OIPA purview because a qualified complainant did
not file with the Auditor.

There is no rational justification for denying access to any individual who desires to file a
complaint with BART’s oversight entities. In fact, progressive oversight entities even allow
receipt of anonymous complaints. In addition, for the reasons discussed above, OIPA should
have clear authority to investigate complaints against any BART PD employee, not just police
officers.

Recommendation Five: The Model should be revised to provide any persons the ability to file a
complaint with OIPA and/or the BART Police Citizen Review Board against any BART PD
employee.

D. Enhancing OIPA Investigations

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide OIPA the Discretion to Investigate Any
Complaint Received.

Currently, the Model provides OIPA the authority to investigate “all complaints of allegations of
police officer misconduct regarding unnecessary or excessive use of police force, racial profiling,
sexual orientation bias, sexual harassment, and the use of deadly force, suspicious and wrongful

14





deaths.” It is inconsistent with progressive oversight practices to limit OIPA’s investigative
authority to these categories. Instead of setting out what OIPA “can do.” the Model should
provide OIPA the discretion and authority to investigate any complaint received.

Recommendation Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the ability to investigate
any allegation of misconduct that implicates the policies of BART PD."*

OIPA and BART PD Should Consider New Investigative Models Designed to Create
Efficiencies and Avoid Duplicative Investigations.

Currently, when OIPA determines to investigate a complaint and proceeds with its investigation,
BART PD conducts its own investigation into the same allegations. This paradigm results in two
investigations of the same allegation with the same purpose — to determine whether the facts
indicate a violation of BART PD policies. In addition to the inefficiencies of having two
investigations being conducted for the same purpose, such an investigative scheme has the
potential of requiring the complainant, witnesses, and involved officers to be interviewed twice,
with any inconsistencies being used to undermine the investigation if a disciplinary
determination is challenged. Moreover, the existence of two investigations with separate review
criteria could lead to disparate results based on the same set of facts.

For these reasons, we recommend that OIPA and BART PD examine the possibility of
developing an investigative paradigm whereby the Auditor has initial review authority on
complaint allegations made to his Office. In those cases, the Auditor should determine whether
to investigate the case or refer all or some of the allegations to BART PD for investigation. Any
allegations referred to BART PD should be monitored by OIPA. BART PD should defer any
investigation of allegations assumed by OIPA. Such a paradigm would eliminate the
inefficiencies of two investigations undertaken for the same purpose and the potential negative
consequences discussed above.

Recommendation Seven: OIPA and BART PD should develop an investigative paradigm
whereby OIPA would determine whether to investigate any complaint allegations received
initially by the Office and BART PD would defer investigating allegations that the Auditor
opted to investigate.

OIPA Should Develop an Investigative Handbook.

Too frequently, investigative authority is provided to entities with little guidance or direction on
how to exercise that authority. This has proven true in our experience regarding police agencies
and their internal review processes, and oversight agencies are often susceptible to the same

' To the degree that our recommendations provide clear authority for OIPA to investigate
allegations of misconduct, it may become necessary for the Auditor and BART PD to work out
protocols regarding which entity investigates which allegations. One “bright line™ rule that may
work is for the entity that initially receives the allegation to take the investigative lead. We are
confident, however, that OIPA and the Police Department will be able to work out these
jurisdictional questions.

15





omissions. OIPA apparently falls within this paradigm. While, to its credit, OIPA did create
investigative templates and standard formatting for its investigations, principles of investigation
were not set out in any handbook or manual. Such a handbook is particularly important for
internal investigations of police officers, given the unique substantive elements and the
distinctive framework of statutory requirements set forth in California’s “Police Officer’s Bill of
Rights.”

An investigative handbook that codified basic principles would help ensure that OIPA
investigations were conducted consistent with best internal investigative practlces Moreover
the development of an investigative handbook should not create a substantial resource burden.
Our experience suggests that, while the handbook should be tailored to OIPA’s oversight
responsibilities for BART PD, universal investigative principles that already exist in handbooks
of other agencies could be easily incorporated into an OIPA version.

Recommendation Eight: OIPA should develop a handbook to provide guidance and
expectations for its internal investigations.

OIPA Should Develop Internal Guidelines Regarding Investigative Timelines for
Completion of an Investigation.

Under California law, in order for discipline to be imposed, a subject police officer generally
must be informed of the agency’s intent to discipline within a year of agency knowledge of the
investigation. For that reason, with some exceptions, internal investigations of police officers
need to be completed within a year of their initiation. While police agencies and oversight
entities imbued with investigative authority recognize this statutory requirement, many recognize
the interest in completing investigations well before the one-year deadline. There are several
reasons for this.

First, if an investigation languishes unnecessarily, the complainant and subject officer will not
receive timely notice of the result. More importantly, because most discipline is intended to be
remedial, a delayed investigation will result in the remediation also being delayed. Nor does the
quality of evidence tend to improve with age; on the contrary, memories fade and a delayed
investigation can undermine the gathering of accurate and complete recollections. Finally,
collateral issues such as consideration for promotion or special assignment can be unnecessarily
delayed for the subject officer during the pendency of unresolved investigations.

Fortunately, OIPA has established a history of being timely in completing its investigations, in
part because of its relatively small caseload. However, because the recommendations set out in

'S While a qualitative review of OIPA’s internal investigations was not the focus of our inquiry,
we learned of one investigative technique that was concerning, namely the frequent use of
telephone interviews by OIPA. Investigative principles strongly favor in-person interviews
because of the natural limitations that exist if an interview is conducted over the telephone.

16





this report envision a laréger caseload for OIPA, it is important to establish formal protocols for
maintaining timeliness.'

Recommendation Nine: OIPA should set out investigative timelines in its internal protocols
that not only meet the statutory requirements but also reflect a commitment to prompt and
efficient resolution of cases.

The Model Should Be Amended so that OIPA’s Disciplinary Determinations Correspond to
Those Utilized by BART PD.

Currently, the Model states that OIPA is to recommend that the matter be “dismissed” at the
conclusion of an OIPA investigation in which the allegations are not supported by the evidence.
Such a finding is not a generally accepted outcome for internal investigations in California.
Rather, police agencies provide a menu of disposition options; for BART PD they are sustained,
not sustained, exonerated or unfounded.

We have been informed that, in practice, OIPA makes findings after its investigation consistent
with the four options available to BART PD. However, in order for the Model to conform to
current practice, the language should be revised accordingly.

Recommendation Ten: The Model should be clarified to reflect that upon the conclusion of an
OIPA investigation, OIPA should recommend a finding of sustained, not sustained,
exonerated, or unfounded.

OIPA Should Revise its Closing Letters to Provide the Complainant as Much Information
as Legally Permissible.

At the conclusion of an internal investigation, OIPA prepares a closing letter informing the
complainant of the results. Consistent with many closing letters we have reviewed, OIPA’s
closing letters are brief and provide little detail about the underlying investigation. Instead, the
notification letter simply reports the outcome without explaining the basis for the decision or the
nature of the investigative process. Complainants whose allegation is not proven (i.e.,
exonerated, unfounded, or not sustained) are left wondering about the thoroughness of the
investigation and the legitimacy of the result.

California law provides restrictions on the type of information that can be provided to a
complainant. Those restrictions, for example, have been interpreted to bar the agency from
providing precise information about the disciplinary action taken. However, there is room under
the law to give complainants more insight into the process. There is no prohibition, for example,
on providing the number of witnesses interviewed, or whether video or audio evidence existed
and was reviewed. By sharing this information, and otherwise tailoring the notification to the
unique circumstances of the case, OIPA could move away from the type of “form letter”
response that can exacerbate disappointment and undermine trust in the process. Accordingly,

'® We iterate that the ability to successfully keep to any internal timelines will be dependent on a
sufficient allocation of resources to OIPA.

17





OIPA should craft closing letters that offer insights into the process and the means by which the
result was reached.

Recommendation Eleven: OIPA should tailor its closing letters to each individual case and
provide the complainant additional information about the investigative steps taken to reach its
conclusion.

At the End of an Investigation, OIPA Should Consider Offering the Complainant the
Opportunity to View Video Evidence.

Because of the adoption of body-worn cameras and the other video surveillance available at
BART stations, there is a significant likelihood that the conduct complained about may be
captured by video evidence. Video evidence can be significantly dispositive of allegations made
against police officers. In cases in which video evidence exists and has contributed to the
decision not to sustain an allegation, it is recommended that OIPA offer the complainant the
opportunity to view the video, particularly when the complainant is the alleged victim of the
misconduct."’

Recommendation Twelve: When a concluded investigation does not result in a sustained
finding, OIPA should offer the complainant the opportunity to view any video account of the
incident.

E. Improving the Disposition Process of OIPA
Investigations

The Model Should Be Revised so that More Transparency is Provided Regarding the
BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Determination on Case Outcomes.

Currently the Model requires the Auditor to submit his findings to the BART Police Citizen
Review Board for consideration. Under current practice, the Review Board considers the
Auditor’s recommendations and votes in closed session regarding whether to agree or disagree
with those recommendations. The Model is silent about how that vote is reported. Current
practice is to report out the results of any vote and the vote count when not unanimous, but the
way in which individual Board members voted is not discernable.

While the case deliberation must remain private in accord with state law, there is no legal
prohibition on publicizing how each Review Board member voted. Moreover, when there is a
dissent, a rationale for the opposing votes should be crafted that could be made public.
Accordingly, and consistent with enhanced transparency, the Model should be revised to
stipulate that such information will be made public in the interest of providing further insight
into the process and outcomes.

"7 Competing privacy interests may prevail in cases in which the complainant is not the person
being captured on video and in those situations OIPA should use its discretion on whether to
offer to show the video evidence.

18





There may be occasions where OIPA may be interested in presenting monitored BART PD cases
to the BART Police Citizen Review Board in order to receive input and feedback. Modifying the
Model to provide the Auditor flexibility and discretion to do so is consistent with the document’s
overarching interest in gaining meaningful feedback and input from the community-based
oversight entity.

Recommendation Thirteen: The Model should be revised to instruct that the BART Police
Citizen Review Board’s vote tally by member on the Auditor’s case recommendations and
findings should be made public. In cases in which a non-unanimous majority agrees with the
Auditor’s case recommendations and findings, the dissenters should set out their rationale Sfor
diverging from the majority’s determination.

Recommendation Fourteen: The Model should be revised to provide the Auditor the discretion
to present BART PD internal investigations to the BART Police Citizen Review Board in order
to receive input and feedback.

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide More Clarity Regarding Process When BART’s
Chief Disagrees with OIPA/BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Recommendation.

Currently the Model states that, should the BART Chief of Police disagree with the findings and
recommendations of the Auditor and the BART Police Citizen Review Board, the Chief has the
ability to appeal the determination to the General Manager in a confidential personnel meeting.
The Model further states that the General Manager shall then make a decision and convey his/her
decision to the Chief, Auditor, and the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Model then
instructs the Chief to implement the General Manager’s decision.

We have been informed that this process has been used at least twice in the six-year existence of
BART’s oversight system. Based on recollection, we learned that in both cases, the Chief
communicated with the General Manager’s Office, pursuant to the Model, and the General
Manager decided to accept the Chief’s recommendations.

As implemented and as the current Model suggests, the appeal process has to date amounted to
an ex parte meeting between the Chief and the General Manager. In that process, the General
Manager only apparently heard the arguments put forth by the Chief; neither the Auditor nor the
BART Police Citizen Review Board had an opportunity to be heard or to rebut the Chiefs
arguments. Moreover, because there was no public accounting of this process, there was no
record of the Chief’s reason for disagreement or the rationale for the General Manager accepting
the Chief’s view over those of the oversight entities.

In common law jurisprudence, most “appeal” processes consist of a forum where the appealing
party submits arguments in writing, all other parties submit papers in response to the moving
party and all parties can be heard in a meeting. Moreover, the decision-maker generally affords
each party the opportunity to respond to any arguments put forward by the “appealing” party at
the meeting. However, under the current plain language of the Model and apparent practice, the
Chief of Police has the apparent ability to present his arguments to the General Manager without
any opportunity for the Auditor or the BART Police Citizen Review Board to be heard.

19





The Model should be revised to explicitly provide for an opportunity for the Auditor and a
representative (e.g., the chair) of the BART Police Citizen Review Board to have seats at the
General Manager’s meeting with the Chief in order to be able to listen to the Chief’s arguments
and to respond to them accordingly.'® Such a process will provide the General Manager the
opportunity to hear from all impacted parties and be able to make a better-informed
determination based on input from each of them. The Model should also be revised to require
the Auditor to publicly report on the outcome of any such appeals consistent with state law.

Recommendation Fifteen: The Model should be changed to require the Chief to timely put
forward the reasons and arguments for appeal in writing and provide the Auditor and the
Chair of the BART Police Citizen Review Board the opportunity to respond in writing, to be
present at any appeal meeting, and to respond to any additional arguments set forth by the
Chief at the appeal meeting. The Model should be further revised to require the General
Manager to set out her/his findings in writing.

Recommendation Sixteen: The Model should be changed to require the Auditor to publicly
report the results of any such appeal meeting consistent with state law confidentiality
requirements.

The Model Should Be Revised so that the Chief of Police Does Not Determine Disputes
Between the Auditor and the BART Police Citizen Review Board on Case Outcomes.

Currently the Model states that in cases in which the BART Police Citizen Review Board
disagrees with the Auditor and fail to come to a consensus, the Review Board and the Auditor
are to appeal the disagreement to the Chief of Police for a determination. Under the current
model, the Chief then listens to both parties and determines whether to accept either the Review
Board or the Auditor’s findings.

Under the current language of the Model, the potential exists for an untenable situation in which
the head of the agency subject to oversight is empowered to be the initial decision-maker when
the two oversight entities disagree on outcome.'® A more appropriate dispute resolution process
would be for the General Manager to convene a meeting with the Auditor, the Chair of the
BART Police Citizen Review Board, and the Chief of Police. During that meeting, the General
Manager would hear the opposing positions of the oversight entities and render a disposition
determination accordingly.

Recommendation Seventeen: The Model should be changed so that when the BART Police
oversight entities disagree on a case disposition, the General Manager will convene a meeting
and, after receiving input from the oversight entities and the Chief of Police, render a
disposition determination.

1% Moreover, in order for the envisioned process to effectively work, the Chief must timely
present any appeal to the General Manager.

' We have been informed that, to date, this provision has not been applied in an actual case.
While this is fortunate, the potential for such a circumstance obviously continues to exist.

20





The Model Should Be Modified to Allow Complainants to Appeal to OIPA Any BART PD
Internal Affairs Findings.

Currently the Model provides complainants the right to appeal to OIPA the findings of an
internal investigation conducted by BART PD regarding “on-duty incidents.” There is scant
rationale for so limiting appellate rights of complainants.

Recommendation Eighteen: The Model should be revised to provide complainants the right to
appeal to OIPA the findings of any internal affairs investigation conducted by BART PD.

Complainants Should Be Informed as a Matter of Course of Their Right to Appeal BART
PD Internal Affairs Findings to OIPA.

We have been informed that the right to appeal BART PD IA findings to OIPA has been used by
complainants only infrequently. One explanation for this may be complainants’ unawareness of
this option. Pursuant to state law, when BART PD closes an internal affairs investigation, it
informs the complainant of that event by letter. The closing letter could be used as an efficacious
way to make complainants aware of their right to appeal the findings to OIPA.

Recommendation Nineteen: BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that the
Police Department’s required notification letter to the complainant regarding case outcome
also informs the complainant of his/her right to appeal the finding to OIPA.

Recommendation Twenty: OIPA should regularly report on the number of appeals received
and the results of those appeals.

The Model Should Be Revised to Protect all Disposition and Disciplinary Decisions from
Unprincipled Changes at the End of the Process.

Currently, the Model simply states that any discipline recommended shall be subjected to an
administrative hearing prior implementation to address the “due process” rights of public
employees. However, the Model does not articulate a role for either oversight entity in the post-
disciplinary processes that currently exist.

Prior to the actual imposition of discipline, BART employees have the ability to argue that any
decision is not supported by the evidence or is inappropriate or otherwise unfair. Currently, the
Chief of Police has the ability to modify the initial determination and rescind charges or
discipline as he sees fit. As a result, the potential exists for initial disciplinary findings by the
oversight entities to be entirely undone by the Chief with neither notice nor opportunity for input
from them. The Model’s silence on oversight’s role in post-disciplinary appellate processes
creates a huge hole in the process that must be filled in order to ensure the effectiveness of
oversight.

One easily implemented remedy would be to add a provision to the Model requiring the Chief to
consult with the Auditor prior to modifying any disposition or discipline decision. If the
employee has raised principled reasons during the post-discipline process for a modification, the
Auditor should obviously be open to the Chief’s proposed amendments. Conversely, the Auditor
should have the opportunity to resist changes in outcome that do not seem to have a reasonable

21





|

basis. If the proposed change is sufficiently significant in its impact on accountability, the
Auditor should request a meeting with the General Manager prior to the change being
effectuated. The Model should also require the Auditor to report on any post-disciplinary
changes in disposition and discipline and whether he agreed with the modifications.

After a disciplinary determination has been made, BART PD employees have the ability to
appeal to an arbitrator. BART is required in this forum to establish the policy violation and
discipline, and any determination by the arbitrator is binding on the parties. Again, our
experience with other jurisdictions is that prior or during these proceedings, the Chief and entity
may be approached by representatives of the employee with an offer to settle the case. The
settlement offer is usually an agreement by the employee to drop the appeal in exchange for a
lessening or removal of the disciplinary determination. Without the oversight entity’s input in
these settlement offers, the potential exists for a settlement that undermines accountability.

Again, an easy remedy exists. The Model should require input from the Auditor before any
settlement agreement is struck between BART and the appealing employee. Should the Auditor
determine that the settlement offer was unreasonable and undermined accountability, the Auditor
should be able to convene a meeting with the General Manager for a final determination
regarding the settlement offer. Finally, the Model should require the Auditor to report on any
disciplinary determinations that are settled, whether he was consulted, and whether he agreed
with the decision to settle the case.

The arbitration process itself is beyond the authority of OIPA but nonetheless warrants attention
as an important influence on its work. Arbitration hearings test the strength of internal
investigations and disposition determinations and can uncover potential weaknesses in those
processes. In addition, an arbitrator has the authority to rescind even termination cases and order
the agency to return the police officer to work — a power that is worthy of public awareness and
scrutiny.

During our review, we were informed of at least one instance in which a BART police officer
was returned to work after being initially terminated by the Department for a serious violation.
However, because the Model sets out no role for its oversight entity in these processes, the
Auditor did not review or assess the reason for the decision to return this terminated employee to
BART employ. As importantly, the Model did not contemplate a public accounting of this
decision as part of the Auditor’s transparency responsibilities. This should be addressed.

Recommendation Twenty-One: The Model should be revised to require the Chief of Police to
consult with the Auditor prior to modifying any initial disposition or disciplinary
determinations. The Model should provide the Auditor an appeal process to the General
Manager should he believe that any modification would result in a serious erosion of

20 We were informed of one case in which a BART police officer originally received notice that
he was to be terminated for a serious infraction that was investigated by the Police Department.
However, that decision was reversed during the grievance process and the employee was
returned to work. The appropriateness of this decision notwithstanding, this is the type of case
that OIPA should be reporting on publicly.

22





accountability. The Model should require the Auditor to publicly report on any modification
of an initial disposition or disciplinary modification and whether he agreed with the
modification.

Recommendation Twenty-Two: The Model should be revised to require BART to apprise
OIPA of any offers to settle cases after discipline has been imposed and provide the Auditor an
opportunity for consultation. The Model should provide the Auditor the opportunity to appeal
any intention to settle the matter to the General Manager should the Auditor find that the
settlement would amount to a serious erosion of individual accountability. The Model should
require the Auditor to publicly report on any cases settled at the post-discipline stage and
whether OIPA agreed with the decision to settle.

Recommendation Twenty-Three: The Model should be revised to require the Auditor to report
on any arbitration determinations that modify or rescind initial disposition and disciplinary
decisions and to evaluate the reasons for any modification. The Model should require the
Auditor to identify any systemic issues that formed the basis for any modification and work
with BART PD to remediate those issues.

OIPA Should Report Publicly the Results of Any Completed Investigation.

While currently OIPA provides some information regarding completed investigations, we
recommend that its reporting be modified to include a narrative of the allegation, the results of
the investigation, whether the BART Police Citizen Review Board agreed with OIPA’s
recommendation, whether the Chief agreed with the proposed disposition, and whether there
were any post-disciplinary changes to the initial disposition. In most cases, the reporting should
begin when the investigation is initiated, with additional information being included as the
process moves forward. Consistent with state law requirements, identifying information about
the case or officers involved should not be included.

Recommendation Twenty-Four: OIPA should publicly report on every investigation from
inception to conclusion, providing information about the case result and the degree to which
OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board recommendations were implemented.

F. Additional Risk Management Role for OIPA.

OIPA Should Be Expressly Authorized to Review Any Claim, Civil Complaint, and Law
Suit Settlements and Judgments.

When an individual believes he or she has been aggrieved by police officers, the person can file a
complaint with the agency and/or oversight entity. Some persons, however, seek relief through
the courts and file a claim or lawsuit instead. Depending on how the concern is received, the
entity’s response may be entirely different. Complaints filed with the agency or oversight entity
are investigated as personnel matters, while the evidence-gathering for litigation has a different
and inherently defensive orientation. We understand this dichotomy but see it differently — or at
least more broadly. Among other things, a claim or lawsuit is essentially a “citizen complaint
with a price tag attached.” If a jurisdiction handles these matters solely in litigation mode, it may
overlook important questions of potential misconduct or resist the kind of investigation that
might produce unwanted evidence.

23





For that reason, leading oversight entities routinely review claims and lawsuits to ensure that
such an appropriate internal inquiry does occur in addition to other responses. In a similar vein,
oversight entities monitor civil litigation to identify potential individual officer performance
issues as well as systemic issues that may be unsurfaced. In cases resulting in significant
settlements or adverse judgments, the oversight entity is often involved with the agency in
developing a corrective action plan designed to remediate any of those issues.

In large part, because the Model did not specify a role for OIPA in these matters, it has not been
involved in reviewing the civil litigation from an oversight and risk management perspective.
OIPA should expressly be provided such authorization so that it can perform this important
function.

Recommendation Twenty-Five: OIPA should be provided authority to review claims and
lawsuits to ensure allegations of misconduct are thoroughly investigated.

Recommendation Twenty-Six: OIPA should review any significant settlements and adverse
judgments involving BART PD performance and work with BART PD to develop corrective
actions intended to remediate any systemic issues.

Recommendation Twenty-Seven: OIPA should report publicly on its work in reviewing civil
litigation.

G. Developing a Mediation Program
OIPA Should Redouble its Efforts to Develop a Robust Mediation Program.

The Model expressly sets out a role for the Auditor in developing a mediation program. It states
expressly that OIPA “shall develop a voluntary alternative dispute resolution process for
resolving those complaints which may most appropriately be corrected or modified through less
formal means.” The Model also contemplated that the BART Police Citizen Review Board and
BART Police Associations would be part of the development process.

Nonetheless, in four years there has yet to be a case that has gone through a mediation process.
While a few individual instances have come close, participants withdrew from the process at the
eleventh hour.

Mediation — where involved parties can safely and productively articulate different viewpoints
with a neutral arbiter — provides a process consistent with contemporary principles of restorative
and procedural justice. The key to developing an effective mediation program is to make the
process worthwhile to all participants, and departments have often faced challenges in getting
officers to see the benefits. While these challenges are real, the experience of agencies in other
jurisdictions shows they are surmountable. OIPA should examine these other jurisdictions to
gain ideas for achieving a successful program. BART PD also should be more engaged in
working with OIPA and the Police Associations to consider additional incentives for police
officers to engage in mediation.

24





Recommendation Twenty-Eight: OIPA should redouble its efforts to create a mediation
process that is attractive to complainants and officers and provides an effective alternative
dispute resolution process.

H. Ensuring Prompt OIPA Notification of All Critical
Incidents

OIPA Should Receive Notification as to All Critical Incidents.

Currently, the Model provides that the Auditor shall be notified immediately regarding an
officer-involved shooting that results in the death or serious bodily injury to a member of the
public or a police officer so that the Auditor can respond in real time to the investigative scene.
The current language of the Model restrictively limits notification of OIPA to only uses of
deadly force that result in death or serious bodily injury.?! While a shooting that does not result
in serious injury or loss of life has less significant consequences for the involved parties, a non-
hit shooting or one that results in minor injury still involved a decision by the officer to use
deadly force, and that decision is worthy of the same scrutiny. Additionally, the notification
protocol does not expressly include other uses of force that result in death or serious injury, or
incidents in which an off-duty officer may take police action and use deadly force.

We have been informed that, to the credit of BART PD, it has been regularly informing OIPA of
a broader set of critical incidents that do not fit squarely within the Model’s language. While
BART PD’s voluntary approach is praiseworthy, the Model should be modified so that it is clear
to all that notification of OIPA should occur for a broader category of incidents.

Recommendation Twenty-Nine: The Model should be enhanced to ensure that OIPA is timely
notified of any critical incident including all officer-involved shootings (on duty or off duty)
regardless of whether the use of deadly force resulted in injury or death, any use of force
resulting in significant injury, and any in-custody death.

I. Enhancing OIPA’s Footprint Regarding Use of
Force

The Auditor Should Be Regularly Reviewing Uses of Force by BART Police Officers.

In order for peace officers to perform their public safety function they are provided unique
authority. In addition to being provided the power to arrest, police are provided the authority to
use force when necessary. This authority, however, must be strictly limited and its exercise
carefully scrutinized in light of the Constitution, the law, and internal policy. As a result, police
officers are required to report when they use force, and command staff of the agency has a
responsibility to review the policy and legal appropriateness of these incidents.

Because of the inherent seriousness of force incidents, and the profound ramifications of misuse
or abuse of this police power, independent oversight should be significantly involved in

! The subheading of the Model is entitled “On-Duty Officer Involved Shooting Incidents,”
suggesting that there is no need to notify OIPA of off-duty uses of deadly force.

25





monitoring force. Currently, except for some officer-involved shootings, OIPA’s review of force
incidents is limited to situations when a “qualified person” complains of force. As a result, both
significant and minor force incidents escape the purview of BART’s oversight entity and are not
subjected to outside independent review.

OIPA should be afforded the opportunity to review every force incident and determine whether
the force should be the subject of an internal affairs investigation. OIPA should also review the
force to determine whether other issues are implicated for the involved officers or the
Department as a whole. OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that each force incident is
reviewed with an eye toward identifying systemic issues such as training, equipment,
supervision, and policy.

We also understand that BART PD convenes use of force review boards that examine significant
force incidents. OIPA should regularly participate in those review boards to provide an
independent perspective and to help assess individual performance and conduct as well as
identify systemic issues. Finally, OIPA should regularly report on its involvement in the force
review process and on any critical incidents.

Recommendation Thirty: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority for and
responsibility of reviewing use of force incidents by BART PD, regardless of whether the
incident is a subject of a complaint.

Recommendation Thirty-One: OIPA should regularly participate in BART PD’s use of force
review boards.

Recommendation Thirty-Two: OIPA should report publicly on its use of force review program
including the outcome of BART PD’s use of force review boards.

Recommendation Thirty-Three: OIPA should report publicly on the internal review of any
officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, or serious uses of force.

J. Mapping Out a Significant Role for the Auditor in
BART PD’s Early Identification System

OIPA Should Be Involved in the Early Identification System.

We have been informed that BART PD continues to develop an early identification system. This
system is intended to use relevant data to identify police officers who may be displaying patterns
of conduct that need to be addressed before they become a problem for the officer, the agency,
and/or the public. For example, an early identification system may reveal an officer who uses
force significantly more frequently than his or her counterparts on the shift — a potential “red
flag™ that could make further scrutiny worthwhile. The resultant intervention is intended to be
remedial rather than punitive and might use mentoring, closer supervision, or other non-punitive
strategies tailored to help mitigate or fix identified concerns.

Our experience is such programs are not only potentially beneficial, but also that independent
oversight can be a helpful resource in their development, implementation, and execution.
Currently, there is no role for OIPA in the Department’s early identification system; we are

26





confident that setting out a distinct role for an independent voice will strengthen the system that
BART PD has been developing.

Recommendation Thirty-Four: The Model should be revised to provide authority and
responsibility for OIPA to regularly participate in BART PD’s early identification process.

Recommendation Thirty-Five: OIPA should report regularly on the status of the Department’s
early identification system and results.

K. Increasing OIPA’s Role as Auditor

The Model Should Be Modified to Increase the Auditing Function of the Independent
Police Auditor.

While the professional oversight entity for BART PD is named the Independent Police Auditor,
most of its work to date has been not auditing but investigating complaints. This incongruity
stems, in large part, because the Model does not clearly define the auditing role for the
Auditor.”?As a result, OIPA has not conducted systemic audits of vital police functions. Other
jurisdictions with robust oversight regularly conduct audits of their responsible police agencies,
including the following areas:

Recruiting and hiring practices

Background investigations

Supervisor performance

Email, MDC and texting reviews

Academy and in-service training

Performance evaluations

Promotional and special assignment processes

Potential bias-based policing in stops or searches

Stop and frisk practices

Complaint intake procedures

Appropriate use of the disciplinary matrix

Transparency and public reporting of data by the police agency
Crisis intervention practices and/or interactions with the homeless
Police Department outreach

Use of lock-ups

Assessing compliance with precepts set out in pillars of 21* Century Policing

2 For example, one lost opportunity was that no role was created in the Model for OIPA to audit
and report on BART PD’s progress on implementing the recommendations set forth by the
NOBLE report referred to above.

27





These oversight entities publicly report on the results of those audits.” Those same jurisdictions
often monitor systems audits conducted by the police agencies themselves and publicly report on
the results of those audits.

The Model should be revised so that OIPA is provided authority and responsibility to conduct
systemic audits of BART PD functions that impact the quality of the Department and the service
provided to its public. Similarly, the Model should provide OIPA the authority and
responsibility of monitoring internal audits conducted by BART PD and to publicly report the
results of those audits.**

Recommendation Thirty-Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority,
access to data and records, staffing, and responsibility to conduct systemic audits of BART PD
functions that impact the quality of the Department and the service provided to its public.

Recommendation Thirty-Seven: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority
and responsibility to monitor any audits conducted by BART PD regarding similar issues and
report publicly the results of those audits.

L. Expanding OIPA’s Role in Policy Development

The Model Should Explicitly Authorize OIPA to Be Involved in BART PD-Initiated Policy
Development.

The current Model expressly authorizes the Auditor to develop specific recommendations
concerning “General Orders and Directives, procedures, practices, and training” intended to
improve “professionalism, safety, effectiveness, and accountability” of BART PD employees.
To its credit, OIPA has made policy recommendations — for example, it most recently suggested
changes to the way in which BART PD deals with panhandlers. However, OIPA has had little
involvement in policy and training changes initiated by BART PD.” Our experience is that the
most efficacious method of policy development is to have the police incorporate the feedback
and input of oversight entities at an early stage, rather than the presentation of a “finished”
product for review at the end of the process.

2 We were informed that the recently retired Chief requested OIPA to conduct an audit of
background investigation files, but that the project was halted because of disagreement regarding
the Auditor’s access and authority.

?* The increased role we recommend for OIPA in auditing, reporting, and real-time monitoring of
BART PD IA cases will likely result in a need to provide additional resources to the Auditor.

The Board of Directors, the General Manager, and OIPA should work jointly to determine the
degree to which additional resources will be needed to perform these additional functions.

3 For example, BART PD recently developed language intended to modify its use of force
policy; OIPA had no involvement in its initial development.

28





Recommendation Thirty-Eight: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the authority
and responsibility to be involved in any policy or training initiatives being developed by BART
PD and to report publicly on any reforms.

The Model Should Explicitly Authorize OIPA to Forward Any Policy Recommendations to
the General Manager and/or the Board of Directors.

While the Model currently authorizes the BART Police Citizen Review Board to forward any of
its policy recommendations to the General Manager and/or the Board of Directors, no similar
express language exists for OIPA. While we have been informed that in practice OIPA has been
provided the ability to forward policy recommendations it has made to these entities, it would be
advisable to revise the Model to expressly recognize this authority.

Recommendation Thirty-Nine: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the express
authority to forward policy recommendations to the General Manager and/or Board of
Directors. In situations in which OIPA’s recommendations are not accepted by BART PD,
OIPA should consider whether to forward its recommendations for Sfurther consideration to
BART’s governing entity.

OIPA Should Ensure that the Public Is Informed on Status and Outcome of Policy
Recommendations.

Over the years, OIPA has developed thoughtful policy recommendations. However, there is no
“record” of the degree to which BART PD accepted and integrated those recommendations. For
example, in its 2012-13 annual report, OIPA set out in detail recommended changes to BART
PD’s recording policy. However, in the subsequent annual reports, there is no follow up on
whether BART PD accepted or rejected each of the recommendations.

Recommendation Forty: In its annual report, OIPA should include an update on any previous
outstanding recommendations and the degree to which the recommendations were endorsed
by the Review Board and accepted by BART PD.

M. Ensuring Integration of Oversight in BART PD’s
Policies and Practices

BART PD’s General Orders Should Include the Authorities and Responsibilities of its
Oversight Entities and a Provision Recognizing the Duty to Cooperate with those Oversight
Entities. A

While the current General Orders and Directives of BART PD include some references to the
existence and responsibility of the Independent Police Auditor and the BART Police Citizen
Review Board, the specific responsibilities set out by the Model do not appear to be incorporated
into those Orders. BART PD General Orders should make specific reference to oversight and its
responsibilities. Moreover, BART PD’s Orders should inform its members of their responsibility
to cooperate and respect the role of its oversight entities.

29





Recommendation Forty-One: BART and OIPA should work with BART PD to ensure that
BART PD’s General Orders incorporate the authority of its oversight entities and the duty of
members to cooperate in the execution of that authority.

N. Ensuring Regular Dialogue Between Oversight and
BART Police Associations

OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board Should Develop Mechanisms to Ensure
At Least Annual Meets with the BART Police Associations.

The Model instructs both OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board to meet
“periodically” and “seek input” from the BART Police Managers Association and the BART
Police Officers Association. We have been informed that while meetings may have occurred
during the first year and have been subsequently scheduled. actual meetings over the past few
years have been sporadic at best. We believe that there is value in having periodic meetings
between the oversight entities and those tasked with representing the interests of BART police
officers. For that reason, a meeting schedule should be devised by both oversight entities to
ensure there is an attempt to meet with both Police Associations at least annually. OIPA and the
Citizen Review Board should annually report on any meetings that are held with the Police
Associations.

Recommendation Forty-Two: OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board should
attempt to schedule a meeting at least annually with the two BART Police Associations. The
oversight entities should annually report on whether such meetings occurred.

0. Clarifying the Relationship Between OIPA and the
BART Police Citizen Review Board

The Model Should Be Revised to Provide Further Guidance Regarding the Relationship
Between OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

Consistent with oversight trends nationwide, BART s oversight system includes a professional
oversight office and an oversight board appointed from the community. That paradigm has
resulted in OIPA being able to develop an expertise in police accountability practices adapted to
a police agency designed to police an extensive transit system and a Board selected from the
BART community that has a meaningful voice and role in both individual cases and systemic
reform.

While it is laudatory that the drafters of the Model recognized the value in having both police
practices experts and community members involved in providing oversight, more clarity is
needed in defining the relationship between the two entities. The Model should expressly
recognize that OIPA and the BART Police Citizen Review Board are to be considered as entities
with complementary oversight roles that are independent of each other.

Much of the source of confusion about the complementary oversight entities is that the Model
assigns the BART Police Citizen Review Board administrative tasks to OIPA. To eliminate this
overlap, BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant position to provide





administrative support for the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Executive Assistant
would assume the administrative functions now set out in Chapter 1-05 of the Model including:

Records of Review Board meetings

Preparation of Review Board reports

Review Board staff support and facilitation of training

Review Board community outreach and communicating with the public
Application process for open Review Board seats

In addition to the administrative tasks expressly set out in the Model, the Executive Assistant
could also be responsible for assisting in developing the Review Board meeting agenda,
arranging Review Board training, coordinating Review Board outreach, assisting with Review
Board reporting responsibilities, and providing any additional administrative support for the
BART Police Citizen Review Board.

The Model currently states that the BART Police Citizen Review Board “shall assess and report
to the Board of Directors’ Personnel Committee on the performance and effectiveness” of OIPA.
We have been informed that this provision of the Model has not been implemented in practice.
The Auditor is subject to an annual performance review by the BART Board of Directors, the
appointing authority. In assessing that performance, the Board of Directors could and should
solicit input from several stakeholders, including the BART Police Citizen Review Board.
However, the Model should be modified to clarify that the BART Police Citizen Review Board
is not the “assessor” of the Auditor’s performance but simply another important source for input
to the Board of Directors.

Similarly, when a BART Police Citizen Review Board seeks reappointment to a new term, the
appointing Director should seek input from OIPA along with other important stakeholders on the
performance of that Review Board member.

Recommendation Forty-Three: The Model should be revised to expressly clarify the
independent yet complementary roles of the BART Police Citizen Review Board and OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Four: BART should consider creating an Executive Assistant position
Jor the BART Police Citizen Review Board to assist with administrative tasks now assigned to
OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Five: The Model should be revised to acknowledge that the BART
Police Citizen Review Board is one potential source of information when the Board of
Directors is seeking input on the performance of OIPA.

Recommendation Forty-Six: The Model should be revised to provide OIPA the opportunity for
input when a BART Police Citizen Review Board member seeks reappointment.

P. Clarifying and Enhancing the Roles of the BART
Police Citizen Review Board

31





The Model should provide clarification of BART Police Citizen Review Board Member
Qualifications.

Currently the Model disallows from service on the BART Police Citizen Review Board any
person “currently employed in a law enforcement capacity” or any “relative of current and
former BART Police Department personnel.” While prohibiting relatives of current and former
BART PD personnel from serving, the Model does not expressly disallow former BART PD
personnel themselves from membership on the BART Police Citizen Review Board. The Model
should be revised to correct this incongruity.

Recommendation Forty-Seven: The Model should clarify that former BART PD personnel are
ineligible to serve on the BART Police Citizen Review Board.

BART Police Citizen Review Board Members Should Have Requisite Training in Order to
Fulfill Their Responsibilities.

By selecting BART Police Citizen Review Board members from the community, BART
oversight benefits from each member’s life experience and perspective. However, modern day
policing is increasingly complex, and BART PD itself has a unique role in providing public
safety for a large transit system. As detailed above, the BART Police Citizen Review Board has
been provided considerable authority, including the ability to consider and Vote on the Auditor’s
recommendations regarding specific complaint investigation dlsposmons This authority
carries with it a heavy burden of responsibility and the BART Police Citizen Review Board
cannot effectively exercise that authority regardmg investigation dispositions without each
member undertaking a careful read of each case.’

Accordingly, in order to effectively carry out BART Police Citizen Review Board duties, each
member must be afforded a basic understanding of progressive police practices, constitutional
and state law, principles of civilian oversight, and BART PD’s distinctive challenges. The
training should also focus on how, as expressly stated in the Model, the BART Police Citizen
Review Board fulfills the “essential community involvement component™ piece of the system
and how it can most effectively fulfill this role. To these ends, a training curriculum developed
for each new Review Board member, including ride-alongs, should be devised. In addition,
Review Board members should get additional training at least semi-annually, perhaps as an
agenda item during regularly scheduled meetings. As noted above, we recommend assignment
of an Executive Assistant to the Review Board; that individual could be responsible, with input
from the existing BART Police Citizen Review Board and the Auditor, for developing and
maintaining the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s training program.

%% The Board of Directors should continue to be mindful of the weighty responsibilities
demanded of each Review Board member when making future appointments.

" Review Board members who have not had the opportunity to read the investigation and

accompanying materials should recuse themselves from deliberations and voting on the
Auditor’s recommendation for that particular case.

32





Recommendation Forty-Eight: A Training Curriculum Should Be Devised For Incoming
BART Police Citizen Review Board Members, and In-Service T raining Should Be Provided at
Least Semi-Annually to Current Review Board Members.

Rotating the Location of the BART Police Citizen Review Board Meetings Would Allow
the Review Board to Reach More Communities.

As noted above, BART PD is responsible for providing public safety for a transit system to
traverses multiple jurisdictions over a wide-ranging area. Yet the BART Police Citizen Review
Board responsible for oversight over this region only meets at one location. Community
members served must travel to this location to attend meetings and provide public comment.
While this challenge is ameliorated by the transit-friendly locale of the meetings, it would
demonstrate the Review Board’s responsiveness to other communities to rotate the meeting
locations. While such a rotation may provide some logistical challenges, it appears worth
exploring whether those hurdles can be overcome.

Recommendation Forty-Nine: The BART Police Citizen Review Board should consider
rotating its meetings to a wider array of locales served by BART.

The BART Police Citizen Review Board’s Outreach Should Be More Vibrant.

The current Model notes that the existence of the BART Police Citizen Review Board effectuates
the essential community involvement component of the oversight system. To advance that
crucial role, the Model expects that the BART Police Citizen Review Board will lead in outreach
efforts to the community, particularly constituencies impacted most by policing, including
communities of color, immigrant communities, and individuals with psychiatric disabilities.
While the Review Board’s regularly scheduled public meetings fulfills that role to some degree,
the Model certainly contemplated that more could and should be done in the outreach arena. We
gather from the BART Police Citizen Review Board’s annual reports that outreach has been
largely undertaken by a few members. However, outreach should be an expected responsibility
of all members of the Review Board.

To that end, before a Review Board member is appointed, the appointing authority should
emphasize the outreach expectation to the potential appointee. Moreover, at one year intervals,
the BART Police Citizen Review Board should place an item on the agenda in which each
member publicly reports on the outreach efforts he/she has undertaken. The degree to which a
member has engaged in public outreach should be considered by the appointing authority in
determining whether to reappoint the member to an additional term. The Executive Assistant
(recommended elsewhere) for the BART Police Citizen Review Board should track the outreach
efforts of individual members and the Review Board as a whole.

Recommendation Fifty: Procedures should be adopted by the BART Police Citizen Review
Board intended to ensure that the Model’s commitment to outreach is achieved. To that end,
each incoming member should be alerted to outreach expectations by his/her appointing
authority. On an annual basis, each Review Board member should report publicly on the
outreach he/she has undertaken the previous year. Finally, the degree of each member’s





public outreach will be considered prior to reappointing the Review Board member to an
additional term.

The Model Should Provide More Flexibility for “Good Cause” Meeting Absences.

Currently, the Model calls for removal of any BART Police Citizen Review Board member who
misses more than three regularly scheduled meetings per year. While the interest in having
Review Board members attend meetings is well-placed, there may be situations where a member
has “good cause” to miss a meeting. For that reason, it would be advisable to provide each
Director with flexibility to excuse his/her appointed Review Board member’s absence for good
cause. Such excusal would not count against the absence limit requirements.

Recommendation Fifty-One: The Model should be revised to authorize excused absences for
good cause that would not count against the absence limitations.

Q. Providing Increased Transparency Authority for
BART Oversight

The BART Oversight Entities Should Be Expressly Authorized to Make Public Statements.

It is not uncommon for officer-involved shootings, in-custody deaths, significant force incident
or allegations of misconduct to engender immediate controversy and concern, particularly if part
of the incident is captured on videotape. In those cases, the existence of oversight entities can
assist in tempering that concern with the recognition that there will be an independent review and
accounting of the incident at the conclusion of any investigation. In recognition of this,
jurisdictions have provided their oversight entities full rein to make public statements about their
role in the wake of controversial incidents.

We have been informed that the Auditor has interpreted the Model to allow him the authority to
make public statements about his work and BART policing issues. That being said, the Model
should be revised to expressly authorize the Auditor freedom to make such statements.
Moreover, the Auditor should be free to speak with any media outlets about any aspect of
oversight and in conjunction with any public report or findings. The BART Police Citizen
Review Board’s ability to make timely public statements provides logistical challenges since the
Review Board meets as a body only periodically. However, the BART Police Citizen Review
Board should consider authorizing the Chair to make public statements on behalf of the Review
Board regarding role and process when an exigency to respond is presented.

Recommendation Fifty-Two: The Model should be revised to expressly authorize OIPA and
the BART Police Citizen Review Board to make public statements about their oversight work.

R. Ensuring Periodic Review of BART Oversight
BART’s Oversight Entities Should Be Reviewed on a Regular Basis.

As noted above, the current Model provided for an assessment of oversight after one year of
implementation. Because the world of oversight is new and constantly evolving, there should be
a commitment to a periodic review of BART’s oversight entities on a going forward basis.

34





Recommendation Fifty-Three: The Model should be revised to call for periodic reviews of
BART’s oversight entities at a minimum of four-year intervals.







